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CORPPDRATE INFORMATION

Kenya Post Office Savings Bank (Postbank) is established under an Act of Parliament CAP 493B
¢f the laws of Kenya, and is domiciled in Kenya. The address of the registered office of the Bank
3+
Postbaijk
6" Bahda Street

-0, Bbx|30311 00100,
mail: md@postbank.co.ke

louse

ebsit¢: www.postbank.co.ke
airobi-Klenya

rincipal Activities
ostbarfk is primarily engaged in the mobilization of savings for national development and
dperatep under the Kenya Post Office Savings Bank Act Cap 493B. In addition, the Bank offers

ther fi 1an‘qcial services such as remittance, collections and disbursement services.

Directdrs

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page 3 to 6.

Ms Grgcée N Maina

Ag. Co mjany Secretary
Ir. O. Bpx 30311- 00100,
Nairob
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd National Bank of Kenya L.td
Kencom House — 6" Floor Harambee Avenue branch
P.O Box 48400 - 00100 P.O Box 72866-00200

Tel: +254-020-3270000 Tel: +254-020-2828000
Nairobi Nairobi

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Auditor- General

Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O.Box 30084-00100

Nairobi

PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISORS

Kale Maina & Bundotich Advocates

Teleposta Towers, 13th Floor, Kenyatta Avenue
P.O Box 10674-00100

Nairobi

Kimaru Kiplagat Advocates

National Bank Building, 1st Floor, Uganda Road
P.O Box 5025-30100

Eldoret

Cherono & Co. Advocates

Hazina Towers, 8th Floor, Monrovia Street
P.O. BOX 4007-00100

Nairobi

Kantai & Co. Advocates

Bruce House, 10th Floor, Standard Street
P.O. BOX 34247

Nairobi

Macharia-Mwangi & Njeru Advocates

ACK Garden Annex, 6th Floor, 1st Ngong Avenue
P.O. BOX 10627-00100

Nairobi

Citibank, N.A.

P.O Box 30711-00100
Upper Hill Road
Nairobi
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Chairperson

hrah Serem is the current Chairperson of Postbank. She is a seasoned professional with over 35 years of
ce|in the public sector. Prior to her current role, she held the positions of ambassador of Kenya to China
1irJJerson of the Salaries and Remuneration Commission. Amb. Serem holds a bachelor’s degree in
y and Political Science from the University of Nairobi, and has extensive expertise in Human Resource
ment, leadership, and management.

|

Prof. Njuguna Ndung’u, CBS
Cabinet Secretary, National Treasury & Planning

lg‘jma Ndung’u is the Cabinet Secretary, National Treasury & Economic Planning. He was appointed
Secretary by President William Samoei Ruto on September 27, 2022. Prior to the current appointment,

rof. Ndung’u was serving as the Executive Director of the African Economic Research Consortium (AERC), a

an Afr

ihternatipn

can premier capacity building network of researchers, trainers, students, universities, policy makers and
| resource persons. He is an associate professor of economics at the University of Nairobi, Kenya and

e immpdiate former Governor, Central Bank of Kenya.

f Pract

asced B

ffrof. Ndung’u has been a member of the Global Advisory Council of the World Economic Forum, Visiting Fellow

ce lat Blavatnik School of Government, Oxford University, Director of Training at AERC, Program

(
gpecialigt at IDRC and Team Leader in Macro-modelling at the Kenya Institute for Public Policy Rescarch and
Analysid. He holds a PhD in economics from University of Gothenburg, Sweden. He is a Member of Brookings
Africa Qrowth Initiative, Member of the Advisory Committee of the Alliance for Financial Inclusion, that
doordindtes financial inclusion policies in Africa, Asia and Latin America, and Senior Advisor for the UNCDF-
4

ujr Than Cash Alliance
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Henry Mutwiri
Alternate to Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury

3 . % 5 ot 9] " .
Mr. Henry Mutwiri Riungu is a financial professional with over fifteen years of experience. Top on the list
of his vast experience is a fourteen-year tenure at the National Treasury in various capacities as Senior
Finance Officer, Deputy Head of the World Bank Division and the most recent roles being Chief
Investment Officer and Chief Intergovernmental Fiscal Relations Officer. During his tenure at the National
Treasury, he was instrumental in ensuring that the resource mobilization function was performed by the
Ministry of Finance for the benefit of Kenyans, specifically by reviewing financing and credit agreements
for mobilisation grants and donations; facilitating and monitoring the implementation of donor-funded
projects and undertaking research on external resources mobilization to inform policy development.

Prior to joining the National Treasury, Mr. Mutwiri served as a Prices and Monopolies Officer at the
Ministry of Finance, a Procurement Officer at the Office of the President and a Lecturer at Nyeri Technical
Training Institute. He currently serves as a Board Member at Postbank. Mr. Mutwiri holds an MBA in
Finance from Maseno University, a Post Graduate Diploma in Finance from KCA

Jacinta Kamemba

Jacinta Kamemba has over 20 years’ experience in Information Communication and Technology (ICT) and
Project Management.

Having worked both locally and globally, Jacinta has acquired a great wealth of knowledge and experience
in the [nformation Communication and Technology field, where she has overseen implementation of many
digital transformation projects. She has held leadership positions in several institutions which include
Global Director of Digitization at World Vision (formally Vision Fund International), Digital finance
Expert and IT Advisor at CDR-PAMIGA, Project Manager and [T Change Management Champion at
Grameen Foundation and Head of Information Systems (MIS) at Vision Fund Kenya (formally KADET
Microfinance) in Tanzania and Kenya.

Jacinta is a Digital Finance Consultant and holds a Bachelor’s of Education Arts from Kenyatta University,
Nairobi and a Master in Business Administration — MIS major, from the untversity of Eastern and
Southern Africa Management Institute (ESAMI). Arusha Tanzania. She has undertaken various trainings
and attained certification in other areas of the Information Technology field namely, Certified Digital
Finance Practitioner, Certification in Product Management for Fintechs, Certification in Leading Money
Markets, Certification in Acceleration of Agent Network Management — Core ANA Innovative Product
Development in Digital Finance and Risk Management in Digital Finance. Ms Kamemba brings to
Postbank a lot of knowledge in governance, having served as a member of several boards, such as Inuka
Microfinance Ltd, Association of Microfinance Professionals of Kenya (AMPK), The Centre International
de Dévelopement et de Recherche (CIDR) a French based research institute and has been a Leader of the
European Microfinance Platform’s digital finance action group — Digital Innovation for Financial
Empowerment (DIFE).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Professor Allan Kihara

r Kihara is a professional Trainer, Author, Researcher, A Peer Reviewer and a Mentor. Skilled and enthusiastic

lecturer|with professional background in strategic management, adept at supervising students’ research (projects/ thesis/
dissertafiorls) at the undergraduate and postgraduate levels, as well as developing curriculum while maintaining a steadfast

focus o
collabo
student
scholar

He hol
in Busi

incorporating various methodologies and new technologies into the classroom. He has passion for fostering
ative and exciting educational environments that have developed productive, thoughtful, and accomplished college
_Demonstrated record of research and publishing excellence, with numerous research articles indexed in Google
Adademia.edu among others, indexed under Allan Kihara.

a Ph.D in Strategic Management from Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT), a Master
ess Administration — Strategic Management from Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT)

and a Bhchtlor of Education (Arts) — Mathematics and Business Studies from Kenyatta University.

Profess
Profess
various

r Kihara's career in education and strategic management spans for more the 15 years. He is currently an Associate
r of Strategic Management at the United States International University-Africa. He has held similar positions in
leatning institutions such as, Senior Lecturer in Strategic Management at The Catholic University of Eastern Africa

(CUEAY), Sknior Lecturer and Academic Leader- Business Administration at Kiriti Women’s University of Science and

Technolo

y (KWUST) and Jomo Kenyatta University of Science and Technology (JKUAT).

oS

His exprtise spreads across managing sales and customer experience having worked at Safaricom as a Customer Experience

Executi

Profess
School

¢ 4nd at Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd as a Sales Executive

r Kihara is a Chairman and Board member of several boards and committees among them, committee for Chandaria
bf Business (USIU-A) accreditation with AACSB, Chairman of Board of Management of Don Orieno Special School

in Murdng’a County, Board member of St. Paul High School Gathuke-ini in Murang’a County, Chairman- Academic and

Quality

Assurance Committee, Kirogo Boys Secondary School in Murang’a County, Chairman-Academic and Quality

Assurarlce Committee. He is a member of several professional bodies among them, Curriculum Evaluation and Reviewing

Expert

t Commission for University Education (C.U.E) in Kenya, Strategic Management Society (S.M.S)-Chicago U.S.A,

Sciencel Publishing Group-USA.

Samir

Samir Abdalla

bdallah Omar currently serves as a member, Board of Directors, and Chairman of the Audit Committee. He is a

transfofmative leader and experienced businessman with demonstrated dynamic professionalism. In his leadership capacities,
Omar I-IILS rot only exemplified astute financial stewardship but also a deep-seated dedication to community engagement, and

COrpors
coastal

¢ spcial responsibility (CSR). He has been at the forefront of advancing women causes, in community settings at the
region and bevond where his contributions have been transformative, serving as a testament to his unwavering

commitiment to equity and social justice. He has also been instrumental advocating for inclusivity. Omar has a background in

accoun

ing(that spans over 10 years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Mr. Raphael M Lekolool
Managing Director

Mr. Raphael Mingisian Lekolool (FCCA, CPA) holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration
(MBA) from Cardiff Business School, U.K., a Bachelor of Science degree in Financial Services
(Hons) from the University Of Manchester, Institute Of Science and Technology (UMIST) and a
Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) degree from the University of Nairobi. Raphael qualified as an Associate of
the Chartered Institute of Bankers (ACIB), the U.K. in 2001 and is a Fellow of the Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA) and member of ICPAK.

Raphael served as a member of the ACCA (Kenya) Members committee and the Senior Members
Advisory Committee. He has also served as the Chair of Nairobi Chapel Finance Committee for six
years. In a career spanning more than two decades in Banking and Insurance. Raphael has gained vast
management and leadership experience. He has served in different capacities both in the private and
public service. Prior to assuming the role of Managing Director at Postbank, he was the Chairperson
of the Risk and Audit Committee at the Ethics & Anti-Corruption Commission. He has also served as
the Chair of the Interim Management Committee (Board) at the Agriculture Food Authority (AFA)
between 2016 and 2017.

At the UAP-Old Mutual Group, Raphael worked as the Enterprise Risk Officer tasked with the key
responsibilities of formulation, review and implementation of the Group Risk Strategy programs for
businesses in the region. His appointment at the Group preceded his serving at Faulu Microfinance
Bank Ltd. where he worked in various capacities and led various teams as the Head of Risk and
Compliance, Credit and Internal Audit and served as a member of the Executive Committee (EXCO)
whose primary mandate is to oversee implementation of strategy and sustainable business growth. In
these capacities, Raphael served as a Secretary to various Board Committees.

Raphael has also served as the Head of Quality Assurance Audit at KCB Bank (K) Ltd. and was
instrumental in implementing a Risk-based audit methodology in response to the bank’s rapid growth
arising from the adoption of technology.
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$ENIOR MANAGEMENT Mr. Raphael Mingisian Lekolool (FCCA, CPA) holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration (MBA)
from Cardiff Business School, U.K., a Bachelor of
Science degree in Financial Services (Hons) from the
University of Manchester Institute of Science and
Technology (UMIST) and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.)
degree from the University of Nairobi. Raphael
qualified as an Associate of the Chartered Institute of
Bankers (ACIB), the U.K. in 2001 and is a Fellow of
the Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and
member of ICPAK.

ina Mutua Dr. CPA Calistus Wekesa (PhD)

T & Alternative Channels Head Audit

b Mutua is an experienced Technologist Dr. Calistus Wekesa is the Head of Audit at Postbank.
I 20-year track record of managing and  In this role, he focuses on assurance on internal control
nting innovative technical solutions in  and promoting good corporate governance.

ndustries. He holds a Bachelor of Dr. Wekesa has over sixteen years experience, with

n t\'lathematics and Computer Science, particular emphasis on financial and revenue
s fin Business Administration accounting, auditing, enterprise risk management,
4tegic Management. He holds a number  supply chain management, financial regulations, donor-
ofessional Certifications. He is a funded project management, business strategies and
of Kenya Institute of Management human capital management.
ellow of the Computer Society of Prior to his appointment, he served in several

°SK) and sits in several Boards. Prior organizations amongst them Maseno University (Head
celincludes EAPCC Kenya [td (Head  Audit, Risk and Compliance) and Agro-Chemical and
ICEALION Kenya Ltd (Group Head of  Food Company Ltd (Chief Audit, Risk and

rclays Bank Kenya Ltd (Manager, Compliance).

ical Support) and KIM (Lecturer, MIS Dr. Wekesa has hands-on experience with ERP system
agement) (SAP), Navision Dynamics and TeamMade audit
software. He holds PhD (Finance), MSc (Finance) and
B.Ed (Accounting and Economics). He also holds a
Diploma in HRM (KIM), Financial Risk Certification
Programme (UK) and is a member of ICPAK. He sits
on various audit committees among them The Bungoma
County Assembly Audit & Risk Committee.

/
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I'am pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statements of Kenya Post Office Savings
Bank (Postbank) for the year ended 3 1st December 2023.

The year 2023 was largely defined by the spiraling cost of living and the continued ravaging effects of
climate change.

On the domestic scene, The National Treasury estimates Kenya’s 2023 economic growth rate at 5.5
percent, surpassing the 4.8 percent achieved in 2022. This positive trend is expected to continue over
the medium term, driven by a robust private sector with various industries contributing to the overall
expansion. The services sector is expected to maintain its strong performance, while the agriculture
sector is set to bounce back on account of improved weather conditions.

REVIEW OF ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
Global and Regional Economy

According to the World Bank, the global recovery from the COVID-19 crisis and Russia's invasion of
Ukraine persisted with a slow and uneven pace throughout 2023, despite initial indications of
economic resilience earlier in the year.

Economic recovery continued to lag, particularly in emerging markets, leading to widening regional
disparities. Various factors hindered this economic progress, stemming from persistent pandemic
effects, the Ukraine conflict, and global economic fragmentation. Additionally, cyclical challenges
attributed to the impact of tightening monetary policy to control inflation, reduced fiscal support due
to high debt, and extreme weather events.

Kenyan Economy

The National Treasury estimates Kenya’s economy grew at 5.5 percent in 2023 despite the numerous
challenges and shocks including global supply chain disruptions due to ongoing conflicts in Eastern
Europe and the Middle East; tightening of monetary policy in the developed world leading to high
interest rates that limit access to credit and exacerbating debt servicing costs; significant losses and
damages due to frequent extreme weather events; and elevated commodity prices such as petroleum
products on account of increased geopolitical fragmentation and global oil supply cuts.

Outlook for 2024

According to World Bank estimates, global growth is expected to slow for a third

year in a row to 2.4 percent, before ticking up to 2.7 percent in 2025. This trend is attributed to the
persistent impact of stringent monetary policies aimed at curbing historically high inflation, tight
credit conditions, and sluggish global trade and investment.
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HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

n ’hc domestic front, The National Treasury estimates that Kenya’s economy is projected to expand by
515 bercent in 2024, which compares favorably with 5.5 and 4.8 percent in 2023 and 2022 respectively.
his growth outlook will be supported by a broad-based private sector growth, continued robust
rformance of the services sectors, the rebound in agriculture, and the ongoing implementation of policy
I cjsures {0 boost economic activity in the priority sectors of the Bottom-Up Economic Transformation
genda.

()I:Ppliancc with Statutory Requirements

uring the period under review, the Bank honored all of its statutory obligations by remitting all required
eductions within statutory time lines.

trategic Plan 2021-2025

hd Bank developed a Strategic Action Plan for the year 2023 based on the long term 5-year strategic
lah 2021-2025. The same has formed the basis of performance contracting negotiations with the

overnment of Kenya for the year 2023.This plan is based on the following Key Result Areas (KRAs)
ile.| Market Focus, Financial Sustainability, Human Capital Development, Business Efficiencies and
oyvernance and Leadership

=

st Management

"he management has continued to address areas of cost management through various measures including
e-megotiation of branch rent leases, online training, rationalization of travel, review of service contracts
mongst other areas. Through partnerships, management is enhancing business ties with the Government
1d private sector, especially for disbursement of Government Social funds and stipend, salaries and
ages and provision of banc assurance services, to name a few.

ppreciation

ould like to convey my sincere appreciation to the Government, our esteemed customers and business
arftners for their continued support. I also wish to thank the management and staff for their dedication to
ervice

March 2024
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

I'wish to present the Bank's Annual Report and the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 st
December 2023.

Kenya's economic performance has strengthened in 2023, with real GDP growth accelerating from
4.8% in 2022 to an estimated 5% in 2023. The government's Bottom-Up Economic Transformation
Agenda, which is geared towards economic turnaround and inclusive growth, is projected to
reinforce this growth

Financial Performance

Postbank’s financial performance for the period ended 3 1st December 2023 was a loss of Kshs 709
million. This was a dip in performance compared to a loss of Kshs 701 million in FY 2022, This
was mainly driven by increases in prices of commodities in FY 2023.

Total incomes in FY 2023 were Kshs 1.907 billion compared to Kshs. 1.813 billion in 2022,
representing 5% growth mainly driven by non-funded income which grew by 8 %.

Interest expense increased by 6% to Kshs 490 million in FY 2023 from Kshs 461 million in FY
2022 this was driven by higher lending rates as well as interest rate on government securities.
Similarly, interest expenses grew driven by an increase in the effective interest rate on customer
deposits.

The Bank’s Customer Deposits declined by 2 % to stand at Kshs 24.88 billion as at 3 1st
December 2023 from Kshs 25.28 billion in FY 2022. An increase in the cost of living affected the
propensity to save by Kenyans, thus affecting the Bank’s deposit mobilization efforts and related
investment incomes earned on these deposits.

The Bank carried out a number for initiatives to maintain and grow business in FY 2023 as listed
below.
1. Financial literacy sessions/activities:

a) With various learning institutions (KCA, USIU, TUK, Zetech University, Muran’ga
University, Kenyatta University,)

b) With security agencies (Kenya Defence Forces, Kenya Prisons, The National Police,
National Youth Service, Brinks Security)

¢) Global Money Week Celebrations that was carried out by all the Postbank branches,

d) MSME’S Inuka Enterprise Program in Conjunction with the Kenya Bankers Association
(KBA).

¢) Others were with the Kenya Wildlife Services, The KCAA.

2 Deposit mobilization activities that targeted various institutions within the Defence forces and
schools
3 Relationship activities that included meetings with Athletics Kenya, National Constituency

Development Fund.

4 Job Shadow with Light for the World, Junior Achievement, Kenyatta University and Dol Dol
High School

5 Loyalty Programs with various Money Transfers Customers in selected regions, Celebration of
International Women's Day and Customer Service Week

6 Rewarded groups (Chamas) that participated in the activity boosting campaign under the Scale

to Save Project funded by the World Savings Bank Institute (WSBI).

10
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

aintained relationships with various international partners ¢.g.

) World Relief International in conjunction with social services
) Merti Intergrated Development Program covering Isiolo County (Merci Corpes and USAID)
) Care International — Youth Savings and Loans Association under She Soars Program
) Boma Project
) Beacon of Hope under USAID4theChild Project
Catholic Relief Services- Prosopis Management Group
) Old Mutual and DD Finance to offer Micro health insurance and last expense to chamas.
h) World Food Program

8 Earried out the following promotions/launches: -

) Promoted MIB Channel — transacting through *498# and depositing through the 200999paybill
pption.

) Supported digital campaigns by Visa on usage at merchant locations and KBA on pin safety

) Facilitated partnership launch between Postbank and Merti

upported various Public Relations sponsorships initiatives such as Machakos Great Run, Postbank
olley Ball team, Sponsorship towards commemoration of the Day of the African Child in
iaya,Ministry of Labour and Social Protection 2023 Kenya Social Protection Conference,Ministry
f Labour and Social Protection International Day of the Family, National Defence College

ultural Day, August Mug Golf Tournament — Karen Sports Club, 2023 Devolution Conference in
“Idoret ,KDF Golf Tournament at Moi Air Base ,Kilifi County Cultural Festival ,Interbank
“ompetition ,World Savings Day among others.

0 The Bank continued to refocus of the Bank's service delivery channels to digital banking through

>roject "Jumuisha". This project will provide the following benefits to customers:

a) Improve the customer journey by offering self-service that is simplified and efficient

b) Improved product offering by allowing customer-centric and value adding solutions that allow
opening accounts, self-registration on digital platforms and transacting from their mobile/desktop
devices without having to visit a physical branch.

c) Added security features that safeguard customer data and transactions.

I'he bank also undertook a product review/categorization that is under implementation.

~ o

RAPITAEL LEKOLOOL
MANAGING DIRECTOR

March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Postbank is committed to the standards of corporate governance as set by the Government for the public

sector from time to time and the Central Bank of Kenya on specific services offered by Postbank.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the long term strategic direction for profitable growth of the Bank
while being accountable to the shareholder by ensuring that Postbank complies with the laws and the
highest standards of corporate governance and business ethics

The Directors attach great importance to the need to conduct the business and operations of Postbank with
integrity and in accordance with generally accepted corporate practice and endorse the internationally
developed principles of good corporate governance.

Board of Directors

The Board is made up of Seven (7) Directors of whom Six(6) are non-executive including the Chairman.
The appointment dates for the respective directors are as show in the table below:

Name Position Held  |Date OFf Appointment
1|Amb Sarah Serem Chairman Appointed on 13th January 2023
2|Jacinta Kamemba Director Appointed on 8th September 2023 |
3|Samir Abdalla Director Appointed on 8th September 2023
4|Dr Allan Kihara Director Appointed on 8th September 2023
5 |Muthamia M Kithinji Director Retired on 7th September 2023 |
6|Clement Museve Director Retired on 7th September 2023
7|Hawo Shanko Abdullah Director Retired on 7th September 2023 o
8|Henry Mutwiri Rungu Alternate Director — CS National Treasury
9|Raphael Lekolool Managing Director

Directors are given appropriate and timely information so that they can maintain full and effective control
over strategic, financial, operational and compliance requirements. The day-to-day running of Postbank has
been delegated to the Managing Director. The Board retains responsibility for establishing and maintaining
the internal control over the strategic, financial, operational and compliance issues. The Board is
responsible of ensuring succession planning and facilitates recruitment of the Managing Director.

The Board is complying with the Mwongozo “the code of governance for state corporations” and all the
Directors have undergone Board Induction training on the code organised by the State Corporation
Advisory Committee (SCAC).
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C()Rl’()qlATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Code df Ethics

Postbank |is committed to the Public Officers Integrity and Ethics Act 2003, Leadership and Integrity Act
td Kenya Anti-Corruption and Economic Crimes Act 2003.

nication with Shareholder

Postbamk is committed to ensuring that the shareholder and the Parliament are provided with full and timely

ion about its performance. This is usually done through the distribution of the Bank’s quarterly

Feports|to the Inspectorate of State Corporations and The National Treasury and specifically the Annual
feports|to the Clerk of the Parliament for distribution to the Members of Parliament. Postbank is in
Compli ml

buidelifies relating to remittance services together with other Guidelines issued by the Government.

e with its obligations under the KPOSB Act, State Corporations Act and Central Bank of Kenya

Directors’ Emoluments and Loans

I'he aggregate amount of emoluments paid to Directors for services rendered during the Year 2023 is
Hiscloséd fin Note 12 to the Financial Statements. There were no loans given to sitting Directors at any time

Huring hiycar.
Board M
I'he Board of Directors meet on quarterly basis or as required. The Board is responsible for monitoring the

etings

ntation of Postbank’s planned strategy and reviewing it in conjunction with its financial

Jerfonzral ce. Specific reviews are also undertaken on operational issues and future planning. At the end of
ancial year, the Board evaluates itself, the Managing Director and Senior Management Staff against
argets thT have been agreed at the beginning of the year.

|
|

13
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Board and Board Committees Attendance

Amb. Mark Henry Jacinta
No. of Sarah |Clement [Muthami |Raphael |Gerald |Hawo [Mutwir [Dr. Allan|Kamemb [Samir

Type of Meeting Meetings |Serem |Museve |a Lekolool [Mwangi|Shanko |i Kihara |a A.Omar
Main Board Meeting 4 4 3 3 4 3 3 . 1 ] l
Special Board Meeting 3 3 1 0 3 3 3 3 2 2 2
Audit and Risk Board 4 0 3 0 0 1 1 4

Committee 0 0 I
Staff Board Committee 4 0 0 3 4 4 3 - ! 1 0
ICT Operations and Credit 4 0 3 0 4 2 3 4

Committee 0 | !
Strategy and Finance Board 4 0 0 3 4 4 2 4

Committee ] 1 0
Board Self-evaluation for | 0 1 I 1 1 0 |

year 2022 0 0 0
Chairperson Induction 1 1 1 1 1 I 1 1

Meeting with Board 0 0 0
TOTALS 25 8 12 11 21 19 16 25 5 6 3

DIRECTORW

March 2024
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M ALAGF,MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2023 marked the third reporting year under our 2021-2025 strategy themed “Setting the Base for
KIPOSB’s Growth and Sustainability”. This plan broadly outlines the various strategies and initiatives
tHe Bank will pursue over the next 5 years i.c. 2021-2025, that are crucial for the Bank’s long-term

th and sustainability.

The strategy is premised on five Key Result Areas (KRASs)/Pillars namely
i)|Market Focus.

siness Efficiencies.
Human Capital Development
inancial Sustainability.

v} Governance and Leadership.

The Bank’s financial performance for period ended 3 1st December 2023 ended with a loss of Kshs
709 ' million, the loss increased from loss of kshs 701 million reported in FY 2022.The increase loss

mainly attributable to a higher increase in expenses compared to the increase in income.

i) 3| % growth in interest income largely driven by better yields from Government securities, good
rdtutns from placements with commercial banks and growth in interest income from staff loans and
Credit Partners -Shared Interest Income.

(

Foreign Exchange Income was Kshs 145 million, 9 % growth from FY 2022 that was Kshs 133
lion .The Kenyan Shilling continues to weaken against the dollar. This is advantageous to the Bank

since it is a net seller of dollars earned from MTS business.
(ifii) Fees and commissions from transactions grew by 24 % to Kshs 561 million in FY 2023 ,in

2022 the bank earned 451 millionKey driver for this line was growth in Mobile banking fee

ahd findication that mobile banking is being embraced by our customers.

Thotal assets at the end of the year was Kshs 14.07 billion

The

2p23. from Kshs 25.28 billion for the same period in year 2022.
[

d

Bank’s Customer Deposits declined by 2 % to stand at Kshs 24.8 billion as at 31st December

uring the period under review, the Bank honored all it statutory obligations by remitting all required
pductions within the statutory time line.




Kenya Post Office Savings Bank
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Major Risk Facing Postbank

The major risk facing Postbank is lack of one stop shop banking solution for customers
compared to the competition. The Bank is a Savings Bank and not a lender, thus the customers
find it easier to save where the Financial Institution can provide loans to assist them grow
business, buy key assets and payment of school fees among others. This has led to shrinking of
the customer deposit base, dormant accounts and as a result, led to depletion of the Bank’s
capital base and losses.

The Board and the management have been in consultation with the Government through the
National Treasury with a view to injecting capital to defray the accumulated losses as provided
in the Kenya Post Office Savings Bank Act, cap 493B, section 13(1).

The management is also addressing areas of cost management and through staff rationalization
and closing unprofitable branches. Customers will still be served through the Mashinani
Agency Network, Mobile Banking and Internet Banking. Management is enhancing business
Partnership’s with the Government and Private sector especially for disbursement of
Government Social funds and stipend, salaries and wages.
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JORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) STATEMENT

Hostbank is dedicated to conducting business in a socially responsible and sustainable manner, with a
firm] commitment to creating value for all stakeholders. (Our Corporate Social Responsibility) CSR
ipitiatives align seamlessly with our core values and business strategy, focusing on key thematic areas
shich as Health, Environment, Education, and Emergency Response.

the pursuit of making a positive impact on thec communities we serve, Postbank undertook various
ihitiatives during the year. Our efforts were not only geared towards addressing immediate needs but also
tpwards fostering long-term development and sustainability

|

Hinancial inclusion remains a cornerstone of our CSR efforts. Recognizing its pivotal role in promoting

onomic growth and reducing poverty, we actively worked to broaden access to financial services.
olraboration with local organizations and governments was key to building capacity, fostering
ihnovation, and improving the overall ecosystem for financial inclusion. The Bank established
artnerships with organizations and stakeholders across different sectors, demonstrating our belief that
lective efforts lead to meaningful outcomes. The Bank partnered with the disciplined forces, tertiary
d secondary schools, different communities and local institutions to offer financial literacy.

ith a presence in 42 counties, comprising 96 branches and over 500 Postbank Mashinani Agents, our
ipitiatives were tailored to meet the unique needs of each community. Our footprint reflects a
mmitment to community development and philanthropy, guiding our fOCl'JS on making a lasting
ositive impact.

ufiing the year under review, the Bank supported causes that embody our commitment to sustainable
usiness practices. These include donating assorted food items to the Ministry of Social Protection to
pport vulnerable families in Siaya, Nairobi and Coast Regions in commemoration of the Day of the
frican Child and Day of the Family. The Bank also extended support to the Amina Myren Foundation,
iding their food distribution program for Tuum, Lesirkan, Arsim, and Seren primary schools facing
treme drought and poverty in Samburu North.

nvironmental sustainability is a top priority for Postbank. In collaboration with government institutions,
e lactively participated in clean-up exercises and tree-planting initiatives. Our contributions towards
chieving the President's directive of planting 15 billion trees by 2032 included the donation of 14,500
dlings and collaborative efforts with organizations such as National Environment Trust Fund
ETFUND), National Youth Service, National Police, Kenya Defence Forces (KDF) School of
Ihfantry, and Athi Water Development Board across different regions in Eldoret, Kisumu, Lambwe,
Naivasha, Gilgil and Kiganjo.

o
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Postbank views Corporate Social Responsibility as integral to its business activities. The
communities in which we operate are crucial stakeholders, influencing the way we conduct our
business. Sponsorships undertaken were aimed at establishing networks and enhancing goodwill
with various stakeholders, reinforcing our dedication to responsible business practices.

In conclusion, during the year in review, Postbank engaged in strategic yet impactful Corporate
Social Responsibility initiatives.

Our commitment to positive community impact remains unwavering, reflecting our belief that a
socially responsible approach is not just a choice but an essential aspect of responsible business
conduct.

DIRECTOR S32p3AlA

March 2024
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The pripe

dducatibnland financial literacy, collection of funds from private and public enterprises and
isburskment of funds for Government pensions and salaries in accordance with KPOSB ACT

CAP 49 3%)

Resultg

The respilts for the year are as set out on pages 22 to 66

AuditoLs

The Audilor General is responsible for the statutory audit of Postbank in accordance with the
Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Public Audit Act 2015 for the period ended 31st

RE]’()R’W OF THE DIRECTORS

Princil al activities

pal activities of the Bank during the year under review were primarily savings

Pirectqrs
The mdmbers of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page 3 and 6

Decem )ell 2023,

By ordgr of the Board.

N
Y )
s.'Ghace Maina

Klg. Company Secretary

March 2024
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The State Corporations’ Act requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year, which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank as at the end of
the financial year and of the operating results for that year. Italso requires the Directors to
ensure that the entity keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the financial position of the entity. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the entity.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the entity’s financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity for and as at the
end of the financial year (period) ended on 31st December 2023

This responsibility includes:

i Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue
to be effective throughout the reporting period;

il Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the entity;

iii Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud: safeguarding the assets of the entity;

iv Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
v Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the entity’s financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgment's
and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and (the State Corporations Act).

The Directors are of the opinion that the Postbank’s financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of Postbank’s transactions during the financial year ended December 3 st,
2023, and of the Bank’s financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the
completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Bank, which have been relied upon
in the preparation of the Bank’s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of’
internal financial control.

Approval of the financial statements

The Bank’s financial statements were discussed and approved by the Board on
2024 and signed on its behalf by:

M;;Iiéagiilg Director Ag. Head of Finance Director
Raphacel Lekolool Benard Musyoki
ICPAK Member No. 5481 ICPAK Member No .2881
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E YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023
I

BF_E

| graw yol;r attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:
D

on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements

'aiFy presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accqu

ting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
e financial statements.

on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
liance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
ies and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,

r:on5|ders how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
t

ons. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk

ws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and

ified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
|
e systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial

pinion

dited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Post Office Savings Bank
n pages 22 to 82, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at

Reglort of t+e Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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31 December, 2023 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, .

statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Kenya Post Office Savings Bank as at
31 December, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and do not
comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Kenya Post Office
Savings Bank Act Cap 493B.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Inaccuracies in Property and Equipment Balance

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects property and equipment
balance of Kshs.1,965,627,418 as disclosed in Note 27(a) to the financial statements.
Review of the asset register and ledgers for the assets revealed the following anomalies;

i) The netbook values reflected in the financial statements were at variance with the
balances in the asset register as listed below;

Financial Asset
Statements Register Variance
Asset Class (Kshs) (Kshs) (Kshs)
Computer Hardware 27,842,634 30,676,048 | (2,833,414)
Electronic Office Equipment 17,597,586 16,482,646 1,114,940
Furniture and Fittings 36,851,216 36,789,125 62,091
Non-Electronic Office Equipment 5,659,970 5,568,155 (8,185)

i)  Further, the cost or valuation of the various asset classes disclosed in Note 27(a)
were at variance with the asset register as shown below;

Financial Asset

Statement Register Variance
Asset Class (Kshs) (Kshs) (Kshs)
Capital Work in Progress 77,626,874 -| 77,626,874
Computer Hardware 913,550,833 913,553,412 (2,579)
Fixed Asset Clearing Account 42,286,143 - | 42,286,143
Furniture and Fittings 408,999,303 408,934,799 64,504
Non-Electronic Office Equipment 99,884,711 99,884,398 313

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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addition, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects
preciation and amortization charges balance of Kshs.190,994,033 as disclosed in
ite 14 to the financial statements. Included in the charge is depreciation of property
d equipment and amortization of intangible assets balances of Kshs.94,225,181

and Kshs.8,392,576 respectively, totalling Kshs.102,617,757. However,
recalculation of the depreciation and amortization charges amounted to
Kshs.76,356,744 resulting in an unreconciled variance of Kshs.26,261,013.

Reaview of the fixed assets register revealed that motor vehicles, furniture and

ngs, computer hardware, electronic equipment and non-electronic equipment

with a total historical cost of Kshs.1,923,414,106 were fully depreciated and still in

e but had not been revalued as per IAS 16.31 which states that revaluations shall
made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ

materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

circumstances, the accuracy of property and equipment balance of
065,627,418 could not be confirmed.

Inaccuracies in Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects a cash and cash
uivalents balance of Kshs.527,290,619 which, as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial

statements includes cash in hand and cash at bank balances of Kshs.322,617,692

an
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ii)

iv)
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d Kshs.204,672,927, respectively. However, review of the cash books and bank
concillation statements revealed the following anomalies;

B bank reconciliation statements reflect a combined cash in bank balance of
Ns.183,726,644 compared to the balance in Note 19 to the financial statements
Kshs.204, 672,927, resulting in an unexplained variance of Kshs.20, 946,283.

e bank balance of Kshs.204,672,927 includes balances amounting to
ns. 104,923,142 in respect to twenty-two (22) accounts that had been overdrawn

(cash book overdrafts). No authority from the Board and The National Treasury for

the overdraft was provided. Further, the overdrafts were offsets against other bank

ba!fmces contrary to IAS 1.32 which requires that assets and liabilities, and income
i

expenses, may not be offset unless required or permitted by the International
¢ounting Standards.

nk reconciliation statements for the month of December, 2023 reflected payments
cash books not in the bank that included payments through twenty-two (22)

cheques totalling Kshs.3,468,304 which had become stale. Further, the statements

lected total payments in cash books not in the bank for seventy-one (71) bank

acdounts which were made through bank transfers totalling Kshs.16,568,445,563
that had been outstanding for more than one month, with some dating back to 2014.
No reason was provided for the failure to reverse these payments in the cashbooks.

Further, bank reconciliation statements for the month of December, 2023 reflected
totdl receipts in the bank statements not in the cash books for eighty-seven (87)

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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bank accounts all amounting to Kshs.376,510,181 that were more than one month
old with some dating back to 2011. No reason was provided for not updating the
cash books.

v) In addition, bank reconciliation statements reflected total payments in the bank
statements not in the cash books for fifty-four (54) bank accounts all amounting to
Kshs.15,664,313,909 with some dating back to 2011. No reason was provided for
not updating the cash books.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.527,290,619 could not be confirmed.

3. Investment Property in Dispute

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects an investment property
balance of Kshs.32,390,225 which as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements
includes a parcel of land valued at Kshs.5,000,000 located within Nairobi which was
allotted to the Bank in 1993. However, site visit during the month of June, 2024 revealed
that the property is encroached by informal settlers and is not secured with a perimeter
fence.

Further, the balance includes a value of another parcel of land located within Nairobi
Region and registered in the name of the Bank with a market value at Kshs.550,000,000
as at December 2017, but carried at a book value of Kshs.27,390,225 though its title deed
is encumbered. The encumbrance was registered vide a caveat dated 15 August, 2014
claiming interest absolutely. Available information indicates that the encumbrance relates
to an ongoing court case between the Bank and another party after the bank lost its claim
in the High Court. Management appealed the ruling in the Court of Appeal and the
outcome of the case had not been determined at the time of the audit.

In the circumstances, the ownership, accuracy and completeness of the investment
property balance of Kshs.32,390,225 could not be confirmed.

4. Doubtful Long Outstanding Accounts Receivables

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects accounts receivables
balance of Kshs.2,978,816,497 as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
However, review of records revealed the following unsatisfactory matters;

i) The balance includes accounts receivables due from Government Institutions
amounting to Kshs.2,549,191,720. Review of the aging analysis revealed that
amounts totalling Kshs.2,432,830,407, had been outstanding for over one year with
some balances dating back to the year 2005 as listed below.

Outstanding
Amount Owed | Amounts Over 1 year

Item (Kshs) (Kshs)
Postal Corporation of Kenya - Excess 780,394,108 780,394,108
Deposits

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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Outstanding
Amount Owed | Amounts Over 1 year
ltem (Kshs) (Kshs)
GOK- KP &TC 405,231,629 405,231,629
Prepaid GOK Pension - Postal 634,463,707 617,045,801
Gorporation of Kenya (PCK) Payroll
GOK Pension Cheques Receivable - 268,553,158 268,553,158
PCK
PCK Overdrawn Claimable 44 953,868 44,953,868
Ppstal Corporations of Kenya (PCK) 73,996,003 64,075,618
Ihua Jamii Commission Receivables 41,985,786 19,640,240
Commission Receivable from GoK 108,970,126 67,076,225
Pension
Trade Debtors 190,643,335 165,859,760
Total 2,549,191,720 2,432,830,407
Although Management cited commitment from the concerned parties including The
National Treasury to settle the debts, the balances were still outstanding and their

pcoverability remains doubtful.

he accounts receivables balance includes rent receivable balance of

i) T

iv)

—

the

e stat

udes

hs.2,9

Unstu

tstanding for over one year and the respective tenants had vacated the
emises. Although Management has outlined various measures it has taken to

Kshs.119,514,710, out of which an amount of Kshs.77,844 868 had been
recover the outstanding rent from defaulting tenants, evidence of recoveries was
n

t provided.

he balance also includes trade debtors balance of Kshs.190,643,335 which
clude debtors with credit balances totalling Kshs.37,880,712 which have been
ffset against the receivables balance, contrary to IAS 1.32 which states that
ssets and liabilities, and income and expenses, may not be offset unless required

he balance includes fixed deposits held in ailing financial institutions balance of
shs.404,924,920. Although the balance has been fully provided for as some of

in
o}
a
ol permitted by the International Accounting Standard.
1
K

He institutions have since been placed under statutory management, no
certificates of confirmation of the deposits were provided.

circumstances, the valuation of the accounts receivables balance of

78,816,497 could not be confirmed.
pported Prepayments and Other Assets

ement of financial position reflects prepayments and other assets net balance of

ns.2,073,983,906 as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements. The balance

other assets and prepayments balance of Kshs.798,080,494, out of which

balances totalling Kshs.591,5692 577 were not supported with respective ledgers. The

Rep

prt of i)
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balance included refundable deposits balance of Kshs.37,305,318 whose details were
not provided.

Further, included in the balance of Kshs.798,080,494 is an amount totalling
Kshs.146,140,366(2022 - Kshs.148,592,998) relating to losses of money through fraud
and cash shortages that had not been recovered by the end of the year. This was despite
the provisions of the Bank’s Human Resource Policy that cash shortages be made good
within forty-eight (48) hours by the concerned staff. No evidence of the Bank’s effort to
recover the losses was provided.

In the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of the prepayments
and other assets' net balance of Kshs.2,073,983,906 could not be confirmed.

6. Unsupported Impairment on Loans and Advances

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects impairment loss
on loans and advances totalling Kshs.50,000,000 as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements. However, Note 25 to the financial statements reflects provisions for bad and
doubtful debts amounting to Kshs.1,304,647,805 which represents an increase of
Kshs.49,099,161 from the previous year's provision balance of Kshs.1,255,548,644,
resulting in unreconciled variance with the amount reflected in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income balance of Kshs.900,839.

Further, the basis for the provisions was not provided and there was no evidence to
indicate that the provisions or expected credit losses were measured in accordance with
requirements of Paragraph 5.5.17 of the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) 9 which states that an entity shall measure expected credit losses of a financial
instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

In the circumstances, the of impairment loss on loans and advances balance of
Kshs.50,000,000 could not be confirmed.

7. Anomalies in Loans to Staff and Directors

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects accounts receivable
balance of Kshs.2,978 816,497 as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
Included in the balance are staff loans, staff debtors-personal development loans and
Directors’ loans balances of Kshs.753,228,708, Kshs.68,515,277 and Kshs.3,327,044
respectively totalling Kshs.825,071,029. Review of the loan register and related records
revealed the following anomalies;

i) The loan portfolio includes outstanding loan balances totalling Kshs.125,108,205
whose maturity had lapsed, out of which loan balances amounting to
Kshs.94,246,308 had been outstanding for over two years with some dating back to
2015. Evidence of Management's effort to recover the loans from either sale of
collateral or legal action on borrowers was not provided.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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e portfolio includes fifty-one (51) defaulted loans totalling Kshs.11,697,002 that
d been issued to members of staff who have since exited the Bank. However, the
ans had not been secured with any collateral and their recoverability is doubtful.
p explanation was provided on how the loanees were cleared by the Bank upon

exit without settling the loans against their benefits.

i) The loan schedules on Directors' loans comprised of loans to two Directors balances

Kshs.2,024,403 and Kshs.1,302,641 which had been defaulted on and had been
arrears since the year 2012. However, no explanation was given on whether the

loans were charged on the asset bought and if so, why the collaterals were not sold

taken as lien to recover the outstanding loan balance or how the bank intends to

recover the outstanding amounts.

Trle balance also includes an amount of Kshs.115,266,988 in respect of interest

ceivable on personal development loans. However, an aging analysis with details
the debtors was not provided for audit review.

the drcumstances, the accuracy, fair measurement and recoverability of the loans to

i directors totalling Kshs.825,071,029 could not be confirmed.
g Outstanding and Unsupported Accounts Payable and Accruals

b prevjously reported, the statement of financial position reflects accounts payable and
crual$ balance of Kshs.3,152,716,175 as disclosed under Note 31 to the financial
htements. Review of the aging analysis of the balances revealed the following
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The balance includes Postal Corporation of Kenya (PCK) services rendered-GoK
pepsion, PCK encashed warrants payable, PCK pension warrants, and GoK
Pension Payroll (unapplied amount to pensioners held by PCK) balances of
Kshs.534,376,156, Kshs.462,050,351, Kshs.170,953,266 and Kshs.1,015,919,183
regpectively, all totalling Kshs.2,183,298,956 which have been outstanding since
2007. However, the financial statements of PCK for the year ended 30 June, 2023
reflect a balance receivable from the Post Office Savings Bank balance of
Kshs.369,211,938, resulting in an un-reconciled variance of Kshs.1,814,087,018.
Although Management has indicated that the balances will be settled once
recodciliations with PCK are complete, no progress reports on the reconciliation
were provided.

Fuuth*er, the balance includes trade creditors balance of Kshs.50,721,669 out of
which invoices amounting to Kshs.22,644,150 had been outstanding for more than

¢ year while supplier accounts with debit balances totalling Kshs.6,191,754 have
en offset against other supplier accounts with credit balances, contrary to IAS 1.32

which requires that assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, may not be
offget unless required or permitted by the International Accounting Standard.

addition, the payables balance also includes other creditors' balance of

Kshs.468,786,751 whose listing includes stale cheques balance of Kshs.58,418,826

d excess cash balance of Kshs.34,581,070. No explanation was provided why the

chgques were not deposited when they were written and the excess cash may be

Refort of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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an indicator of failure to reconcile and follow-up cashiers where there are cash
differences occurring in the various branches. Further, the amount includes interest
payable on customer liability balance of Kshs.82,910,249 whose details and aging
analysis were not provided.

In the circumstances, the accuracy of the payables and accruals balance of
Kshs.3,152,719,175 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards for Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIs). | am independent of the Kenya Post Office Savings Bank
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
1. Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

As previously reported, the bank reported a loss of Kshs.709,279,028 (2022 -
Kshs.701,006,236), increasing the accumulated loss to Kshs.16,790,772,156 as at
31 December, 2023. Further, the bank's current liabilities balance of
Kshs.28,179,467,382 exceeded the current assets balance of Kshs.11,921,063,591,
resulting to a negative working capital of Kshs.16,258,403,791 (2022 -
Kshs.15,171,693,846). The Bank was therefore unable to meet its financial obligation as
and when they fell due. As disclosed under Note 2(e)(i) to the financial statements, the
Bank was technically insolvent and its continued operation as a going concern will depend
on continued support from the Government and creditors.

2. Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.1,626,051,945 and Kshs.1,368,513,638
respectively, resulting to an under-funding of Kshs.257,538,307 or 16% of the budget.
However, the Bank expended an amount of Kshs.2,077,792,666 against actual receipts
of Kshs.1,368,513,638 resulting in an over-expenditure of Kshs.709,279,028,
representing approximately 52% of the actual receipts.

The under-funding and over-utilization affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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In the ¢
Financ

Qther Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit Matters

previous years’ audit reports, several issues were raised under the Report on the
al Statements, Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public

Resources and Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and
Qovernance which remained unresolved as at 31 December, 2023.
PORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
SOURCES
nclysion
ABb required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the

atters djscussed in Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based on the audit

pfoced

Basis

res performed, | confirm that, public resources have not been applied lawfully and

infan effective way.

r Conclusion

1| Non-Compliance with Human Resources Regulations

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects employee costs
of|Kshs|1,149,154,291 which as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements includes
ar) amount of Kshs.715,767,455 in respect to salaries and wages. However, review of
staff payroll for the period revealed that an average of three hundred and seventy three

(33)

embers of staff were paid net salaries that were below one-third of their basic

sdlaries| contrary to Section 19(3) of the Employment Act, 2007 which states, inter alia,

that, wi

ut prejudice to any right of recovery of any debt due, and notwithstanding the

prpvisions of any other written law, the total amount of all deductions which under the
prpvisions of subsection (1), may be made by an employer from the wages of his

employ
Fdrther

¢e at any one time shall not exceed two-thirds of such wages.

Jan amount of Kshs.15,933,601 was paid to staff as Acting Allowances. However,

mest of them had acted for more than six months in contravention of Section C.14 of the

Hdman

Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for the Public Service, 2016 which

states tnal inter alia acting allowance will not be payable to an officer for more than six

(6) months.

In the cifcumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2.| NoniCompliance with the National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008

Rgview of the staff bio-data revealed that out of five hundred and seventy-two (572) staff
members employed by the Bank, two hundred and twenty-one (221) staff members were
from one ethnic community accounting for 39% of the total staff. This was contrary to
Section [7(2) of the National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008 which stipulates that no
puplic establishment shall have more than one-third of its staff from the same ethnic

commu

nity.

Replort of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023

| 9




In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Irregular and Unapproved Variation of Insurance Contract

Included in operating expenses and as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements,
is insurance expenses balance of Kshs.36,769,061. However, review of payment and
procurement records revealed that the Bank procured and awarded a two-year banker's
blanket bond insurance contract at an annual premium balance of Kshs.12,088,523 from
January, 2021 to December, 2023.

However, during the year, the Bank renewed the cover at an annual premium balance of
Kshs.15,423,973, an increase of 28% of the previously awarded amount. The variation
was above the maximum allowable threshold of 25% as required by Section 139(4) of the
Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which states that the cumulative value
of professional services does not result in an increase of the total contract price by more
than 25% of the original contract price.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance sections of my
report, based on the audit procedures performed, | confirm that, internal controls, risk
management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion
1. Under Staffing

As previously reported, review of the human resources records revealed that the Bank's
approved establishment provided for six hundred and ten (610) members of staff while
four hundred and eighty-six (486) were in place resulting to an understaffing of one
hundred and twenty-four (124) members of staff.

In the circumstances, the understaffing may have impacted on efficient service delivery
by the bank.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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2| Fail
We

AB pre
operatig
tq the
capturin
and its
trail of

re to Integrate Information Communication Technology (ICT) Systems and
knesses in Filing and Archiving System

viously reported, the Bank runs on various ICT systems to support its daily
bns. However, the core banking system and the payroll system are not integrated
main accounting management system, resulting to manual interventions when
g key data such as revenue from the banking system and payment of salaries
deductions. This exposes the Bank to risks of data loss and lack of proper audit
ransactions. Further, the Bank has been utilizing one of the regional offices as

offsite archive station. However, physical verification of the archives revealed that there

wgs no

filing system in place and document retrieval was cumbersome. This may affect

the efficiency of operations and risk of backed up records. In addition, the Document
Retention Policy for the bank was not provided for audit review.

Inf the gircumstances, the Bank risks loss of data and this may affect its ability to offer
s@grvices in case of disruptions.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards

require

that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective

prpcesses and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
oftained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Réspon sibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Managgment is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial

statem

nts in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and

fof maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whethen due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls| risk management and overall governance.

In|preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Bdnk’s ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related

to| sust

inability of service and using the applicable basis of accounting unless

Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Bank or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit

Act, 201p.

In |addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
stgtements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the

aclivitie

, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are

in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are

applied

in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
prqcess,| reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e l|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Post Office Savings Bank for the year ended 31 December, 2023
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basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fralid is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
acdounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my [audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease

ntinue to sustain its services.

Evdluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
bus ness activities of the Bank to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

ing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

infernal controls that are identified during the audit.

| diso provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships

a

FC
AL

Nﬁrobi

02

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and

where aoqllcable related safeguards.

PA » CBS

DITOR-GENERAL

September, 2024

Rep)|
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Kenya Post Office Savings Bank

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 31 December
In#erest income
Interest expense

INet interest income

Fees and commission income
f-ees and commission expense

Net Fees and commission income
Net trading income

Foreign exchange income

Dther Operating income

Net Operating Income

Dperating Costs

mpairment loss on loans and advances
Employee expenses

Board expenses

)ptrating expenses

Depreciation and Amortization
\njjonization cost- Treasury Bonds
Dther expenses

[otal Operating Costs

Loss before income tax
come tax expense*

e e T T N e

p—

oss for the period

Qther Comprehensive Income

.

irllcome
Ljoss from fair value re-measurement

Tlo

—_

al comprehensive income for the year

Total other comprehensive income for the year

22

Notes
4
5

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

ems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or

lnssj'
Fiinancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

SjATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022

Kshs Kshs
1,139,023,006 1,102,857,613
(489,926,074) (460,877,732)
649,096,932 641,979,882

560,502,925
(48,906,818)

450,801,354
(40,512,027)

511,596,107

410,289,327

1,160,693,039

1,052,269,209

144,774,636
63,045,963

132,672,241
127,333,783

1,368,513,638

(50,000,000)
(1,149,154,291)
(10,945,791)
(338,395,823)
(190,994,033
(2,777,314)
(335,525,414)

1,312,275,233

(47,000,000)
(1,127,515,414)
(6,540,042)
(293,082,711)
(219,673,446)
(5,956,256)
(313,513,600)

(2,077,792,666)

(2,013,281,469)

(709,279,028)

(701,006,236)

(709,279,028)

(701,006,236)

(458,874,450)

(175,278,393)

(458,874,450)

(175,278,393)

(1,168,153,478)

(876,284,629)
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wn

As at 31 December

ASSETS

(Jas

Hunds on Call and Short Notice
I vfstmcnl in Treasury Bonds

I v?ftmcnt Property

ocks

ther Investments

ccpunts Receivables

epayments & Other Assets

oterty and Equipment
Right of use Assets
Intangible Assets

Total Assets
IABILITIES

I

(Justomer Savings and Deposits
Accounts Payables & Accruals
C
L

OK Pension Reserve Fund
case Liabilities
Total Liabilities

LREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deferred Revenue

e\:FIualion Reserves

Hair Value Reserve

I cvknuc Reserves

otEI Shareholders’ Equity

10

Tihe
Jirectors on

p—

— —

[PAK Member No. 5481

VYF& naging Director
a?hael L.ekolool

'l]TTlCMEN'I' OF FINANCIAL POSITION

23

Notes
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

30

-

31
32
33

34

21 (b)

AL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2023 2022

Kshs Kshs
527,290,619 444,983,904
90,980,520 740,256,552
6,199,845,764 6,878,317,214
32,390,225 32,390,225
13,573,993 15,450,616
4,182,067 4,263,075
2,978,816,497 2,989,839,854
2,073,983,906 1,983,086,885
1,965,627,418 2,039,708,225
176,752,553 265,128,829
10,542,750 18,935,326
14,073,986,312 15,412,360,705
24,883,903,949 25,282,399,257
3,152,716,175 2,816,095,504

54,470,982 73,411,134
179,835,254 265,352,453
28,270,926,360 28,437,258,348
8,293,834 11,952,959
3,165,760,210 3,165,760,210
(580,221,936) (121,347,486)
(16,790,772,156)  (16,081,263,325)
(14,196,940,048)  (13,024,897,643)
14,073,986,312 15,412,360,705

Ag. Head of Finance
Benard Musyoki
ICPAK Member No 2881

financial statements on pages 22 to 66 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of
2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director



Kenya Post Office Savings Bank
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Revaluation Fair value  Revenue Reserves TOTALS
Reserve
Kshs Kshs
At 1st January 2023 11,952,959  3,165,760,210 (121,347,486) (16,081,263,325) (13,024,897,643)

Loss for the year
Loss on revaluation of financial assets at FVOCI

(458,874,450)

(709,279,028)

(709,279,028)
(458,874,450)

Additions during the year (i) (3,659,125) (3,659.,125)
Prior year adjustments (ii) (229,802)
At 31st December 2023 3,165,760,210  (580,221,936) (16,790,772,156) (14,196,940,048)
At 1st January 2022 3,165,760,210 53,930,907  (15,365,358,373)  (12,137,092,466)
Loss for the year (701,006,236) (701,006,236)
Loss on revaluation of financial assets at FVOCI (175,278,393) (175,278,393)
Charge during the year 3,378,168

Prior year adjustments (14,898,716) (14,898,716)
At 31st December 2022 11,952,959  3,165,760,210 (121,347,486) (16,081,263,325) (13,024,897,643)
Prior year adjustment of Kshs 229,802 in year 2023 arose from; Kshs

1) Rent Arreas paid in 2023 (81,451)

2) Overstatement of Capital gain from trading of Treasury Bond fxd1/2012/20 (148,351)

Total (229,802)
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STATE
l'or the

>rofit/(
A djustm

A morti;
A mortiz

A ppreci
rior ye

necreasg
ncreasq
ncreasg
Net cas

"ASH

Purchas
roceed
“hange

[CASH |}
Receipty
Net cas

Net incr
“ash an

["ash ar

{'he notd

MLNT OF CASH FLOWS
year ended 31 December

,oss) for the year
ents for:-

atipn of right of use assets-Leased

)cprccijﬂicm of property and equipment

atipn of intangible assets

,oss/(gcﬁn on disposal of fixed assets

tion/Diminution in value of quoted investments
hr adjustments

Dperating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

Incrcasz)/ll))ecrcase in Accounts Receivables & Prepayments
Increasp)/Decrease in stocks

Increasg) ‘

ncreasd/(Decrease) in Accounts Payables & Accruals

(Decrease) Customer Savings and deposits
(Decrease) GOK Pension Reserve fund account
(%ccrcasc) Lease Liabilities

h

%}ecrcasc in Right of use Assets

ows from operating activities

FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
d o??ropcrty and Equipment

5 from disposal of assets

n Fair Value Reserve

Net cash flows from investing activities

!

FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
from WSBI

flows from financing activities

ase in cash and cash equivalents
i cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
d cash equivalent at the end of the year

Note

9

25 & 26

27 & 29

21b

34

35

s dn pages 27 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2023 2022
Kshs Kshs

(709,279,028) (701,006,236)
94,225,181 120,646,003
88,376,276 88,376,276
8,392,576 10,651,167
- (783,204)

81,008 27,325
(229,802) (14,898,716)
(518,433,789) (496,987,385)
(79,873,663) 95,096,980
1,876,621 (3,158,940)
336,620,671 (225,611,602)
(398,495,308) 1,129,642,715
(18,940,152) 5,671,161
(85,517,199) (92,216,333)
(762,762,819) 412,436,595
(20,144,374) (28,202,496)
788,667
(458,874,450) (175,278,393)
(479,018,824) (202,692,222)
(3,659,125) 3,378,168
(3,659,125) 3,378,168
(1,245,440,767) 213,122,541
8,063,557,670 7,850,435,129
6,818,116,904 8,063,557,670




Kenya Post Office Savings Bank
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Actual Budget Variance
Kshs Kshs Kshs %o

Interest income 1,139,023,006 1,265,406,895 (126,383,889) -10%
Interest expense (489,926,074) (479,500,000) (10,426,074) 2%
Net interest income 649,096,932 785,906,895 (136,809,964)| -17%
Fees and commission income 560,502,925 614941911 (54,438,986) -9%
Fees and commission expense (48,906,818) (41,306,819) (7,599,999) 18%
Net Fees and commission income 511,596,107 573,635,093 (62,038,986)| -11%
Net trading income 1,160,693,039 | 1,359,541,988 (198,848,949)[ -15%
Foreign exchange income 144,774,636 145,228,774 (454,138) 0%
Other Operating income 63,045,963 121,281,183 (58,235,220) -48%
Net Operating Income 1,368,513,638 1,626,051,945 (257,538,307)| -16%
Operating Costs

Impairment loss on loans and advances (50,000,000) (50,000,000) - 0%
Employee expenses (1,149,154,291)| (1,234,993,514) 85,839,223 -7%
Board expenses (10,945,791) (10,623,995) (321,796) 3%
Operating expenses (338,395,823) (332,068,577) (6,327,246) 2%
Depreciation and Amortization (190,994,033) (219,086,909) 28,092,876 -13%
Amortization cost- Treasury Bonds (2,777,314) (13,638,316) 10,861,002 -80%
Other expenses (335,525,414) (295,259,034) (40,266,380) 14%
Total Operating Costs (2,077,792,666)| (2,155,670,345) 77,877,679 -4%
LLoss before income tax (709,279,028) (529,618,401) (179,660,628) 34%
Income tax expense* - - - -
Loss for the period (709,279,028) (529,618,401) (179,660,628) 34%
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T/ores to the Financial Statements

I GENERAL INFORMATION

Kenya Post Office Savings Bank (Postbank) is established under an Act of Parliament CAP
493B of the laws of Kenya, and is domiciled in Kenya and is wholly owned by the
‘ Government of Kenya

Postbank is primarily engaged in the mobilization of savings for national development and
operates under the Kenya Post Office Savings Bank Act Cap 493B. In addition, the Bank
offers other financial services such as remittance, collections and disbursement services.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the
statement of financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in these financial statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Accounting Standards (IAS). The financial
statements were authorized for issue by the Board on 29 February 2024.

The financial statements comprise of statement of comprehensive income, statement of
financial position, statement of changes in reserves, statement of cash flows, and notes.

b) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) based on the historical cost convention. The bank revalued its
property and equipment in December 2017,

¢) Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings (Kshs), which is the company’s
functional currency. Items included in the financial statements are measured using the
currency of primary economic environment in which the entity operates i.e. Kenya shillings.

d) Use of Estimates and Judgment's

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgment's, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to estimates are
recognized prospectively
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
¢) Assumptions and Estimation of Uncertainties

(i) Going concern

The Bank operates with the intention of being in business in the next 12 months and in the
foresecable future. The management runs the day to day activities by ensuring that assets are
realized and liabilities honored in the normal course of business.

However, the Bank’s future performance is dependent on restructuring and government
support in defraying the incurred losses from the year 2012 to 2023 amounting to Kshs.
(16790,772,155) in accordance with KPOSB Act cap 4938 section 13 (1).

Note 10- Impairment loss on deposits, loans and advances

Note 2.2 (s)- Recognitions and measurement of contingencies: Key assumption about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

(ii) Critical judgment in applying the entity’s accounting policies

In accessing the need for collective loss allowances, management considers factors
such as:
Credit quality
. Portfolio size
Concentrations
. Economic factors

Note 27- Depreciation of equipment and intangible assets. The Bank reviews the useful life of
its property and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each financial period
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otes to the Financial Statements
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

ew standards and interpretations not yet adopted
FRS 16: Leases
The standard, which was issued in January 2016, will upon implementation result in almost all
eases being recognised on the statement of financial position, as the distinction between
pperating and finance leases is removed.
FRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease
iability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low-value items. The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.
FRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Bank has assessed the estimated impact that the initial application of IFRS 16 will have on
ts consolidated financial statements, as described below

L) I.eases in which the Bank is a lessee

l) the final reconciliation of the of the Bank’s leases’ portfolio

i) the Bank’s assessment of whether it will exercise any lease renewal options; and

i) the extent to which the Bank chooses to utilize practical expedients and recognition
xemptions available under the standard.

The Bank will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of Group premises and
quipment. The nature of expenses related to these leases will now change because IFRS 16
replaces the straight-line operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for right-of- use
ssets and interest expense on lease liabilities. Previously, the Bank recognised operating lease
xpense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and recognised assets and liabilities
nly to the extent that there was a timing difference between actual lease payments and the
xpense recognised.

s at 31 December 2023, the Bank’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
perating leases amounted to Kshs 98 million
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
f) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
b) Transition

The transition provisions of IFRS 16 allow an entity not to restate comparatives. The
Bank will elect not to restate comparatives but instead adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 using a modified retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of
adopting IFRS 16 will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019, with no restatement of comparative information.

The Bank has assumed an average incremental rate of 10% on all its operating leases.

New and amended standards adopted by the Bank

i) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
i) Transfers of investment property — amendments to IAS 40
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
P Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Bank (Continued)

l:‘RS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts
ith customers (except for contracts that are within the scope of the standards on leases,

nsurance contracts or financial instruments). It replaced the existing revenue standards

and their related interpretations

I'he five steps in the model are as follows:
Identify the contract with the customer
+ Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Determine the transaction price
+ Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
+ Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer

of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration of

tvhich the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
tandard incorporates a five step analysis to determine the amount and

iming of revenue recognition.

3ecause the standard does not apply to revenue associated with financial instruments, it
does not impact the majority of the Bank’s revenue streams. The Bank has reviewed the
contracts with customers within the scope of IFRS 15 and concluded that the adoption of
FRS 15 did not have a material impact on the Bank’s revenue recognition criteria and
here were therefore no transition adjustments required.

'IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Bank elected not to restate
comparative figures. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and
inancial liabilities at the date of transition will recognized in the opening retained
arnings and other reserves of the current period.

The Bank is still accessing the impact of IFRS 9 on its financial statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2-Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements have

Revenue Recognition
Income is recognized on an accrual basis

i) Interest

Interest income and expense are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income using
the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset
or liability. The effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset
and liability and is not revised subsequently

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees paid or received, transaction
costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or liability.

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of comprehensive income include:
Interest on financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost on an effective interest rate basis;
. Interest on available-for-sale investment securities on an effective interest basis; and
- Interest income and expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered to be
incidental to the bank’s trading operations and are presented together with all other
changes in the fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

ii) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis when the
service has been provided .Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective
interest rate on a financial asset or liability are included in the measurement of the
effective interest rate
Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, are recognized as
the related services are performed
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings at rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date which are
expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Kenya Shillings at rates ruling at that date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions if any. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined if there is any

¢) Employee benefits

The Bank operates a defined contribution scheme whose funds are held in a separate trustee
administered and guaranteed scheme managed by an approved investment company. The

| pension plan is funded by contributions from the employees and the Bank. The bank’s

contributions are charged to profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

d) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Investment Property

Though the standard is silent on definition of significant, the assumption of materiality will
guide while determining the threshold. Anything greater than 10% will greatly influence the
decision maker. In the case of the Bank, the percentage of usage for Upper Hill properties

\and Dandora Plot is insignificant, hence classified under Investment Properties contrary to
lowner occupation at Postbank Postbank House Nairobi (49%); Postbank Mombasa (25%);

Postbank Nakuru (50%); and Postbank Eldoret (100%) which is significant, and falls under

Plant Property and Equipment (PPE).

Equally the International Accounting Standard (IAS 16) — considers Plant, Properties and
Equipment (PPE) as tangible assets held for use in production or supply of goods or services,
for rentals to others, or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used for more than
one period. The standard also allows a choice of accounting model to use either cost model
or revaluation model. In our case we opted for revaluation model.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

d) Property, plant and equipment

(ii) Revaluation and Cost Model

The Bank has used the Revaluation and depreciating model for Land and Buildings while for
all other classes of assets, Cost and depreciating model has been applied as per IAS 16.

(iii)Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Leaschold properties for which the lease has 99 years or more to run are stated at cost or
valuation and are not depreciated. Other assets are stated and depreciated at cost.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis, at rates estimated to write off the assets over
their expected useful lives.

The following depreciation rates are used:

Category Rate p.a.

Buildings 2.5%
Show stands 20.0%
Motor vehicles 25.0%
Furniture and fittings 12.5%
Electronic office equipment 20.0%
Non-electronic office equipment 12.5%
Computer hardware 20.0%
Computer software 20.0%

(e) Intangible assets

Software license costs and computer software that is not an integral part of the related
hardware are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs that are directly attributable to the
production of identifiable computers software products controlled by the bank are recognised
as intangible assets.

) Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of each license
or item of software to its residual value over its estimated useful life using annual rate of 20%.

g) Stocks
Stocks comprise of stationery and drugs in the staff clinic which are valued at cost.

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement comprise cash and bank
balances net of bank overdraft, deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions and
Treasury bills, treasury and corporate bonds as at the balance sheet date.



Anniu

Kenyd Post Office Savings Bank

y/ report and financial statements

For the )}ear ended 31 December 2023

Notes
28

~—

t

U

D
T
(

C(

rc

=1

to the Financial Statements

JIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fixed interest investments (bonds)

ked interest investments refer to investment funds placed under Central Bank of Kenya

Q loLcd investments are classified as non-current assets and comprise marketablc securities
'ade[d freely at the Nairobi Securities Exchange or other regional and international
seeurities exchanges. Quoted investments are stated at fair value

k) TLade and other receivables

fade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any
llectible amounts. These are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

espimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at
the )%:ar end. Bad debts are written off after all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.

"l‘a*alion
lje Bank was exempted from paying corporate taxes as per the Income Tax Act Cap 470

Fi"sjschcdule Part 1, however this was lifted by The Tax Laws (Amendment) Act, 2020

eaning the Bank is now subject to corporate tax)

m 'lLradc and other payables

mde and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortised cost, which
neasured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in future in

regpect of goods and services supplied, whether billed to the entity or not, less any
payments made to the suppliers.

n)|Retirement benefit obligations

et

in | separate trustee administered scheme managed by a Fund Manager. The contributions
m4dg by the Bank both to the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution retirement scheme
anfl to the Provident FFund are charged to the profit and loss account in the year of

ank operates a retirement benefits plan for its employees, the assets of which are held

yhtribution.

Frpm year 2011, the Bank and the employees also contribute to the National Social
Sepurity Fund (NSSF), a national defined contribution scheme. Contributions are
defermined by local statute and the company’s contributions are charged to the profit and
logs zrccount in the year to which they relate
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
0) Short term employee benefits
The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued annual leave entitlement at the
balance sheet date is recognized as an employment cost accrual.

p) Foreign Currency Transactions

On initial recognition, all transactions are recorded in the functional currency (the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the bank operates), which is
Kenya Shillings. Foreign currency transactions during the year are converted into Kenya
shilling equivalent at rates ruling at the transaction date.

Assets and liabilities at the statement of financial position date which are expressed in
foreign currency are translated into Kenya shillings at the rates ruling at the transaction
date. The resulting differences from conversion and translation are dealt with in the profit
and loss account in the year in which they arise.

q) Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property and equipment. The reserve is non-
distributable.

Revaluation reserves are made up of periodic adjustments arising from fair valuations of
Property and equipment. Movement in the revaluation reserve are shown in the statement
of changes in equity is Kshs 3,165,760,210

The Bank revalued Land, Buildings, Motor Vehicles, Furniture & Fittings, Electronic
Office Equipment’s, Non Electronic Office Equipment’s and Computer Hardware on an
open market basis by professional valuers, Realty Valuers East Africa Limited as at 29th
December 2017. The book values of the properties were adjusted to the revaluations, and
the resulting surplus, was credited to the revaluation reserve.

r) Revenue Reserve

This represents undistributed accumulated losses from current and previous years
including prior year adjustments. The accumulated loss as at 3 st December 2023 is Kshs
(16,790,772,156).

s) Contingent Liabilities

Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the
business. Although there may be no assurance, the Directors believe based on the
information available and advice from the legal experts that the claims will be defended
successfully and therefore no provision has been made in the financial statement.

The significant claims are described below:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

s) Clontingent Liabilities (Continued)

(i) PpstBank - vs - Simiyu Wasike: The land in dispute involves Postbank and Simiyu Wasike. It is
inU )pir Hill. (The value of the property was Kshs. 550 million as per revaluation done in

dmber 2017 ) but carried at book value of Kshs 27,390,225 .The Bank lost the matter at the

HigH Court and filed an Appeal. The court will deliver its judgement on 6th December 2024

(ii) 1h the year 2018, a statutory actuarial valuation of the Defined Benefits (DB) Scheme as at 3 1st
Decdgmber, 2018 disclosed an actuarial deficit of Kshs. 625,089,000/, a funding level of 73.6%.
the rhinimum funding requirements as per the Retirement Benefits Authority (RBA) minimum

n%

a

leve!l and winding up of schemes regulations 2000 requirement is 100%. As a result, the
d the Scheme agreed on a remedial plan which was filed and approved by RBA. Under the

6) in order to return the scheme to the minimum solvency level of 100%.

In cdmpliance with RBA regulations to conduct an actuarial valuation on DB Schemes after three
() ye

as at|3 1st December, 2021 disclosed an actuarial deficit of Kshs. 202,871,000/=, a funding level of
91.2

at, the Scheme conducted statutory actuarial valuation of the Defined Benefits (DB) Scheme
0.

Scj\emc and the bank have agreed on another remedial plan where the bank (sponsor) continues
monthly payments of Kshs. 8,682,000/=. It is noteworthy that a monthly contribution at
g 1682,000 per month will require that the bank contributes for 26 months (1 January 2022 to

29 Fgbruary 2024) for the deficit to be fully amortized. As at end of December 2023 the Bank had
paid K
i)’
for uhfair termination when the Bank failed to renew their contracts. Amount claimed is Kshs
106,826,167. The matter was referred for arbitration and Cases terminated as at 28th February,
2023 However vide an application dated 24th April, 2023, the Claimants sought to have the
decidi
the app

s 373,325,000 towards offsetting the deficit

Ilhe former heads of department sued the bank under the Employment and labour relations court

‘OL of the arbitrator overturned. The Bank has since executed a Replying Affidavit opposing
ication.

t) Bpdget

3uiiget for FY 2023 had not been approved by the National Treasury by date of publishing
unts

)aik uses Zero-based budgeting (ZBB). All expenses must be justified for each new period.
budgeting starts from a "zero base," and every function within an organization is analyzed for

its ndeds and costs. Budgets are then built around what is needed for the upcoming period. This
allows

specifid functional areas of the organization, where costs can be first grouped and then measured
agair stj'cvious results and current expectations. At the end of every month actual and budgeted

op-level strategic goals to be implemented into the budgeting process by tying them to

amoynt|is compared to obtain variances. The presentation of budget information in Financial
Statgnents is done as per International Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) 24.

A conparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved
budgkt, |is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

A stdtement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
compar
perfdrnjance has been presented under the section of Statement of Comparison of Budget and
Actupl of these financial statements.

son of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the Bank’s
presentation currency

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates -
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the income statement, except for differences arising on translation of
non-monetary financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income, which are
recognized in other comprehensive income

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
income statement within “finance income or costs”. All other foreign exchange

gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit or loss for the year within “other
gains/losses-net”.

2.4 Financial instruments

a) Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes loans, advances, deposits and debt securities on the date at which
they are originated.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date at which the Bank commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

A financial asset or liability is initially measured at fair value plus (for an item not subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Financial instruments (Continued)

b)Classification

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and
available-for-sale financial assets. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated
at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by

'management.

ii) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides money
directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. These include advances to
staff, Visa credit to customers and placements with other banks. Loans are initially measured

at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their
lamortized cost using the effective interest method.

iii) Held-to-maturity

‘Hcld—to—malurily investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
ayments and fixed maturities that the Bank’s management has the positive intention and
bility to hold to maturity. Were the Bank to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-

maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as available for sale.

These include Treasury Bills, Treasury Bonds and Government Stock.

iv) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time,
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates or exchange
-ates. Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held to
maturity and available for sale are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Bank
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Loans are recognized when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

‘inancial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
ssets have expired or where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

bwncrship,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Financial instruments (Continued)
iv) Available-for-sale (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets are carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets category are
included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognized
directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognized or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity should be recognized in profit or loss.
However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.
As per IAS 39, financial instruments are supposed to be classified as Held-to-maturity and
Available- for-sale. However, the Bank has classified all its financial instruments as Held-to-
maturity since the Bank has no intention of selling the instruments.

v) Identification and Measurement of Impairment of Financial Assets

At each statement of financial position date, the Bank assesses whether there is objective
evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired.
Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the
future cash flows on the asset than can be estimated reliably.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and collective level. All
individually significant financial assets are assessed for specific impairment. All significant
assets found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that
has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are then
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together financial assets (carried at amortized
cost) with similar risk characteristics.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity sccurities) are impaired can include
default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms
that the Bank would otherwise not consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating
to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
[dentification and Measurement of Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

hssessing collective impairment, the Bank uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability of

default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to

ether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less

h suggested by historical modelling. Default rate, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
uldrly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

baiment losses on assets carried at amortized cost are measured as the difference between the carrying
punt of the financial assets and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original
ctive interest rate. Losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and reflected in an
wance account against loans and advances. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized

pugh the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to

dedrease, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognized by transferring the difference

veen the amortized acquisition cost and current fair value out of equity to the statement of comprehensive
bme. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss on an available-for-sale debt security

to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

yvcicr, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is
benized directly in equity. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to time value are reflected as a

compgnent of interest income.

Derecognition

Thd Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a
trarjsaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.
Thd Bank derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expjre,

Thd Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its statement of financial position,

retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If
r substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized from the

statpment of financial position. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards
inclpde, for example, securities lending and repurchase transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Financial instruments (Continued)

vii) Impairment for Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A
cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that
largely are independent from other assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro-rata basis.

viii) Budget Accounting Policy

The bank uses Zero-based budgeting (ZBB). All expenses must be justified for each new
period. The budgeting starts from a "zero base," and every function within an organization is
analyzed for its needs and costs. Budgets are then built around what is needed for the
upcoming period. This allows top-level strategic goals to be implemented into the budgeting
process by tying them to specific functional areas of the organization, where costs can be
first grouped and then measured against previous results and current expectations. At the
end of every month actual and budgeted amount is compared to obtain variances. The
presentation of budget information in Financial Statements is done as per International
Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) 24.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

a) Principles

Postbank faces various types of risks which arise from its day to day operations as a
financial institution. The Board of Directors and Management therefore devote a significant
portion of their time to the management of these risks. The mainstay of effective risk
management is the identification of significant risks, the quantification of the Banks’s risk
exposure, actions to limit risk and the constant monitoring of risk.

The overarching aim of risk management is to ensure that all risks assumed in the course of
the Bank’s business are recognized early on and mitigated by effective risk management.
Successful risk management is recognized as a pre-condition for the sustained growth and
success of the Bank. Risk management and monitoring are implemented via the Bank’s risk
management and risk control process and the organization structure corresponds to prudent
Risk Management Guidelines.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

a) Principles (Continued)

In order to ensure continuous improvement of risk management at all times the following key risk
principles have been adopted and are applied;

- The Board of Directors assumes the ultimate responsibility for the level of risks taken by the Bank
and is responsible to oversee the effective implementation of the risk strategies.

« The organizational risk structure and the functions, tasks and powers of the employees, committees
and departments involved in the risk processes are continuously being reviewed to ensure clarity of
their roles and responsibilities.

- Risk issues are taken into consideration in all business decisions. Measures are in place to develop
risk-based performance measures and this is being supplemented by setting risk limits at the overall
Bank and divisional levels, as well as by enforcing consistent operating limits for individual business
activities.

- Risk management is increasingly being linked to management processes such as strategic planning,
annual budgeting and performance measurement.

- Identified risks are reported in a transparent and timely manner and in full to the responsible senior
management.

+ Appropriate and effective controls exist for all processes entailing risks.

All these principles are enshrined in the Bank’s risk management policy.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from an obligor’s failure to
meet the terms of any contract with the bank or if an obligor otherwise fails to perform as agreed




Kenya Post Office Savings Bank
Annual report and financial statements
For the ;Varrr ended 31 December 2023
Notes to the Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk ( Continued)
(i) Management of Credit Risk
The Bank is subject to credit risk through its lending and investing activities. Considerable resources,
expertise and controls are devoted to managing it and comprehensive strategies, policies and procedures
have been developed to effectively manage this risk.
The Bank’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its advances to employee and Visa credit to
customers. Credit risk ratings are assigned to customers to enable the bank to establish the risk and
enable credit decisions to be undertaken within acceptable risk appetite threshold through its credit
policy.
At the management level there, is a credit risk department staffed with highly skilled personnel who
ensure credit risk are identified and mitigated. Within this department there are debt collecting officers
who follow up on bad loans.

(ii) Write-off Policy

The-Bank writes off a loan / security balance (and any related allowances for impairment losses) when
management determines that the advances / securities are uncollectible. This determination is reached
after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower financial
position such that the borrower can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not
be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure

(¢) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from the institution’s
failure to meet its maturing obligations when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank’s reputation.

The Bank has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised mainly from deposits.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(¢)|Liquidity Risk (continued)

The key measure used by the Bank for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of net liquid assets to deposits from
cugtomers. For this purpose net liquid assets are considered as including cash and cash equivalents and investment
se ur}ics for which there is an active and liquid market less any deposits from banks, other borrowings and

EXx| w.Fre to liquidity Risk

corhmitments maturing within the next month.

The¢ beard has approved a policy to effectively manage liquidity at all times to meet depositors demand, and
ungxpected outflow. The investment undertakes statement of financial position liquidity and scenario analysis as
per{the policy on bi-monthly basis.

Th¢ bank strives to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of liabilities
with range maturities, in addition the bank holds a portfolio of liquid assets as part of its liquidity risk
mapagement strategy.

(d)[Market Risk
Marktl: risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates
and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s / issuer’s credit standing) will affect the group’s
incpme or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
mapage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

(i) magement of market Risk

Ovg¢rall responsibility for management of market risk rests with a management committee of the Bank, the Asset
and| Liability Committee (ALCO). The risk department is responsible for the development of detailed market risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by ALLCO) and for the day to day implementation of those
policids.

Regular monitoring of Postbank’s risk profile against risk appetite limits e.g. foreign exposure and risk limits,
liquidity and solvency ratios which are contained in the market risk framework incorporating market and country
riski pc‘licics approved by the board.

ii) lxposure to Interest Rate Risk

Thd principal risk to which financial assets and liabilities are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the
futyre cash flows or fair values of financial instrument because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate
risk|is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT(CONTINUED)
(e) Operational Risk
The Operational risk is a risk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, and systems or from external events.
The Bank’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial
losses and damage to the Bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.
The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address
operational risk is assigned to senior management within each business unit. The responsibility is
supported by the development of overall Bank standards for the management of operational risks.
Compliance with these standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by
internal audit. The results of internal audit reviews are discussed with the management of the
business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Board Risk Committee and
senior management of the Bank.

Risk measurement and control

Interest rate, credit, liquidity, operational risk and other risks are actively managed by independent
risk control groups to ensure compliance with the Bank’s risk policy. The Bank’s risk exposure
limits are assessed regularly to ensure their appropriateness given the Bank’s objectives and
strategies and current market conditions
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4 |Interest Income
Government securities
Amortized cost
Fair value through OCI
Interest on Term deposits
Interest on Staff LLoans
Interest on Visa Balances
Credit Partners -Shared Interest Income

Ln

Interest expense

Interest on deposits
Interest on lease liabilities

G Fees & Commissions Income

Inactivity Fees
Salary Crediting Fees
Premature withdrawal Fees
Withdrawal Fees
Visa Fees
Card Fees
Western Union - MTS Commission
Citibank Commission
Tension Commission
nua Jamii Commission
rwoney Transfer Commission (Others)
ATM withdrawal Fees
Bills Commission-Water & Electricity
“orfeited Interest & Bonus-SAYE Income
iscellancous Fees & Commission (others)

7 Lccs and Commissions Expense

Eharcd Costs Adjustments

Commission Expense-MoneyGram
>remium Paid Commission on Purchase of
3onus Paid-SAYE Expense

Commissions & Agency Fee

Mobile banking Expenses

Commission paid on deposit mobilization

2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
490,801,225 523,804,230
399,976,386 359,169,212
44,697,311 38,290,459
28,758,398 27,417,209
3,055,302 1,858,786
171,734,384 152,317,717
1,139,023,006 1,102,857,613
2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
484,556,400 453,337,442
5,369,674 7,540,290
489,926,074 460,877,732
2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
22,249,325 43,305,931
62,238,089 53,469,647
47,422,000 44,373,103
70,545,321 58,741,258
2,731,555 2,662,599
39,444,677 20,794,962
25,145,672 25,569,244
75,554 161,086
55,992,100 57,328,600
61,197,779 23,307,348
12,038,458 11,647,863
48,131,813 36,136,264
8,768,802 10,907,725
13,933,895 12,743,899
90,587,885 49,651,825

560,502,925

450,801,354

2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
4,520,015 4,658,677
3,248,974 4,280,686
15,514,922 1,602,235
4919,519 4427917
13,102,099 13,073,544
4,531,000 9,957.089
3,070,289 2,511,879
48,906,818 40,512,027
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10

Foreign Exchange Income

Realized Gain/LLoss On Sale Of Forex From MTS
Forex Gain On Money Transfer Transactions - WU
Forex Gain On Transactions -Money Gram

Other Operating Income

Rental Income

Dividend income

Interest on Bank accounts

Tender fees

Appreciation/Diminution in value of quoted
Mobile Banking Fee

Capital Gain on Sale of Investments
Commission Income on Foreign Visa

Gain on Sale of Assets

Sundry income

Impairment Loss on Deposits, Loans and Advances

General Provisions-Including Staff loans

48

2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
69,901,842 53,053,182
64,503,671 69,883,361
10,369,123 9,735,699
144,774,636 132,672,241
2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
51,060,951.0 48,896,838
1,104.0 22,373
1,776,122.0 1,894,590
24.800.0 7,700
(81,008.0) (27,325)
- 31,981,589
- 32,691,784
96,500.0 277,000
- 783,204
10,167,494.0 10,806,030
63,045,963 127,333,783
2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
50,000,000 47,000,000
50,000,000 47,000,000




Hen
Ann

Hor

ya Post Office Savings Bank

ual report and financial statements
the year ended 31 December 2023

Not

es to the Financial Statements

Employee Expenses

Salaries and Wages

Medical expenses
Staff training
Other staff expenses

Board Expenses

Directors Honoraria
Directors Allowances
Directors Allowances Telephone

Operating Expenses

Security expenses
Insurances

Office relocation costs
L.and rent and rates
Repairs and maintenance
Service charge

Licenses

Agency Fees

Depreciation and Amortization

Pensions and Provident Fund contr.

Agency Expansion Project Expenses

Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 27)
Amortization of right of use assets-Leased (Note 28)
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 29)

2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
715,767,455 718,334,220
220,619,307 224,744,223
32,334,561 32,536,105
5,966,809 7,730,454
174,466,159 144,170,412
1,149,154,291 1,127,515,414
2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
929,973 759,452
9,973,158 5,733,500
42,660 47,090
10,945,791 6,540,042
2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
97,472,065 101,101,775
36,769,061 40,777,769
0 105,000
445,765 455,275
45,056,693 24,949,851
13,752,360 13,752,360
128,489,777 92,494,202
15,995,082 19,435,279
405,020 11,200

338,395,823

293,082,711

2023

Kshs
94,225,181
88,376,276

8,392,576

2022

Kshs
120,646,003
88,376,276
10,651,167

190,994,033

219,673,446
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15 Amortization for Bonds Trading Cost

Amortization

This relates to Treasury Bonds Premiums amortized during the period

Other Expenses

Operating Stationery

ATM Card Cost

Travel and Subsistence allowances
Newspapers and Periodicals
Printing and stationery

Staff Welfare Expenses

Debt collection

Postage & telephone
Computer expenses

Motor Vehicle Expenses
Audit fees

Donations and subscriptions
Legal and professional fees
Electricity and water
Cleaning, Sanitation & Messengerial
Special Projects Launching
Bank Charges

Selling & Marketing expenses
Hire of Motor Vehicles
Research & Development
Retail Banking-Search fee
Integrated Reimbursement fee

50

2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
2,777,314 5,956,256
2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
4,063,863 3,048,596
61,256,595 53,962,731
8,980,809 9,479,699
363,896 213,020
4,840,233 3,973,096
32,962,967 32,050,848
2,107,955 40,000
66,524 242 67,589,755
3,276,749 6,281,722
8,699,723 5,460,894
6,000,000 5,000,000
4,546,282 4,810,411
8,366,793 8,207,685
22,283,686 17,262,465
20,397,475 16,492,431
1,543,643 4,472,415
9,212,685 11,433,083
39,409,297 42,828,331
2,411,475 1,600,501
39,840 0
5,900 8,050
28,231,306 19,297,867
335,525,414 313,513,600
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Profit (Loss) For The Year

The loss for the year is stated after charging:
' Directors emoluments

Audit fees

Depreciation/amortization intangible asset expense
Bonds amortization cost

Pension scheme contribution

and after crediting: -

Dividends

Appreciation/Diminution in value of quoted

Note

12

16
27
15
11

2023
Kshs

10,945,791
6,000,000
190,994,033
2,777,314
220,619,307

1,104
(81,008)

2022
Kshs

6,540,042
5,000,000
219,673,446
5,956,256
224,744,223

22,373
(27,325)
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18  Explanation of Material Variance on The Statement of Com parison of Budget and Actual
for the twelve months ending 31 December 2023

Actual Budget Variance
Income Kshs Kshs Kshs %o
a) Interest income 1,139,023,006 1,265,406,895 (126,383,889) -10%
b) Fees and commission income 560,502,925 614,941,911  (54,438,986) -9%
¢) Foreign exchange income 144,774,636 145,228,774 (454,138) 0%
d) Other Operating income 63,045,963 121,281,183  (58,235,220) -48%

a) Interest income for the period was Kshs 1.139 billion against budget of Kshs 1.265 billion giving
unfavorable variance of Kshs 126 million.

(i) The Bank earned Kshs. 890 million as Investment Income from TBs against a budget of Kshs. 922
million, this was below budget by Kshs 102 million i.c.,10 %, this was due to non-attainment of budgeted
customer deposit figures which were to drive investment values and consequently Investment Income.

(ii) The Bank earned Kshs. 45 million from placement in Commercial Banks against a budget of Kshs. 41
million. %. This was due to the high rates on call deposits in the year 2023.

b) Fees and commission income for the period was below budget because of non attainment of key revenue
lines e.g. GOK Pension Commission due to declining number of pension accounts ,decline in MTS
revenue (Money Transfer Services).

¢) Foreign Exchange Income was Kshs 145 million, which was equal to the budget of Kshs 145 million.
The Kenyan Shilling continues to weaken against the dollar. This is advantageous to the Bank since it is a
net seller of dollars earned from MTS business

d) Other operating income for the period was Kshs 63 million against a budget of Kshs 121 million, giving
an unfavorable variance of 48 %, this was lower by 49% compared to the same period last year.

Other operating income lines that did not meet their targets were.

*Rental Income earned the bank Kshs 51 million compared to budget of Kshs 89 million, this was due to
low occupancy level of our rentable office space in Mombasa and Nakuru.

Note: Approved budget by The National Treasury classified some income lines that we report under other
income to fees and commission income

Direct Expenses Actual Budget Variance %o

d) Interest expense (489,926,074) (479,500,000)  (10,426,074) 2%

Interest expense for the year was Kshs 490 million (made up of interest expense on depositors - Kshs 485
million and Interest on lease liabilities -Kshs 5.3 million), this was above budget by Kshs 10 million.
During the year interest rates on the TB's rose to an average rate of 17% , Our customers are took cue of
this and asked for higher rates for their funds leading o increase in interest rates.

Recurrent Expenses Actual Budget Variance Yo
€) Board expenses (10,945.791)  (10,623,995) (321,796) 3%
f)  Operating expenses (338,395,823) (332,068,577) (6,327,246) 2%
¢) Depreciation and Amortization (190,994,033) (219,086,909) 28,092.876  -13%

Cost control measures put in place contributed to low expenditures compared to budget. Depreciation and
Amortization costs contain Amortization of right of use assets-leased in compliance with [FRS 16.
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19 C+sh and Cash Equivalents 2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
sth on Hand 322,617,692 315,315,607
Cash at Bank 204,672,927 129,668,297
‘ 527,290,619 444,983,904
lek of cash at bank was held at Kenya Commercial Bank of Kenya and
National Bank of Kenya who are the Bank’s main bankers
2.0 Funds on Call and Short Notice 2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
CitiBank 10,935,004 10,935,004
NSLBA 17,287,650 17,044,213
National Bank of Kenya 12,757,866 12,277,335
KeTnya Commercial Bank of Kenya 50,000,000 700,000,000
‘ 90,980,520 740,256,552
I'he Bank has placed some of its funds in call accounts with commercial banks as
as listed above. The funds are lien for clearing settlements.
IFor the year under review, the funds were invested at the following interest rates
BANK RATE
NCBA 3.35%
Citibank 4.0%
National Bank of Kenya 4.0%
Kenya Commercial Bank(K) 7.5%
P 1 lnLeslment in Treasury Bonds 2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
"i#cd rate Treasury bonds - FVOCI 2,468,245,764 2,927,117,214
‘ixed rate Treasury bonds — amortized cost 3,731,600,000 3,951,200,000
6,199,845,764 6,878,317,214
I'reasury bonds maturing after 360 days
Tom date of acquisition 6,199.855,764 6,878,317,214
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2023 2022
2 Investment Property Kshs Kshs
Cost
At 1 January 32,390,225 32,390,225
Disposal
At 31 December 32,390,225 32,390,225

Included in the investment Property is

(i) Upper Hill Property whose market value is Ksh.550,000,000 ( as per revaluation done in
December 2017) but carried at book value of Kshs 27,390,225. Title to the Upper Hill property is
in dispute with the current occupant of the premises claiming allotees interest absolutely. The
matter is in court and the Bank expects a favorable outcome since it has a vesting right in the
property and is holding it with an intention of selling or reinvesting. The property is a piece of
land with a building taken over from Thabiti Finance Ltd in licu of deposits held for the Bank

(ii) Dandora Plot with a value of Kshs 5,000,000.
The reclassification of Dandora Plot and upper hill property from Property and Equipment to
Investment property has been done as per IAS 40.

2023 2022
Stocks & Drugs ’ Kshs Kshs
Stationery 12,743,583 14,149,145
Drugs 830,410 1,301,471
13,573,993 15,450,616
Other Investments 2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
Quoted investments (cost) 2,055,637 2,055,637
Unquoted investment 13,540,000 13,540,000
15,595,637 15,595,637
Less: Provision for diminution .
in market value of quoted (11,413,570) (11,332,562)
4,182,067 4,263,075

(i) Quoted investments were valued at Kshs.2,828,067.50 (2022 Kshs.2,909,075) using the
Nairobi Securities Exchange market price at the close of the year.

Quoted investments comprise of equity holdings in the following listed companies:

Value as at
Company No.of Shares|Market price [ 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Kakuzi Ltd 6,500 385.00 2,502,500 2,502,500
Total Kenya Ltd 15,000 18.00 270,000 357,750
Bamburi Cement [td 1,550 35.85 55,568 48,825
2,828,068 2,909,075

(i) Unquoted investment represents 80% of deposits in City Finance Bank (Jamii Bora Bank)
converted into shares following their restructuring in year 2000.

N
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Accounts Receivables

Postal Corporation of Kenya-Excess Deposits
GOK -KP&TC (i)

Commission Receivable from GOK  for pension
Prepaid GOK Pension — PCK Payroll

GoK Pension Cheques Receivable — PCK (ii)
PCK Overdrawn Claimable

Restitution (PCK)

Directors Loans

Inua Jamii Commission Receivable

Staff Loans

Staff debtors — Personal Development Loan
Interest Receivable -PDIL.

Rent Receivables

Staff Imprest

Accrued interest on Treasury Bonds
Discount on Treasury Bonds

Fixed deposits in ailing financial institutions
Trade Debtors

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

2023

Kshs
780,394,108
405,231,629
108,970,126
634,463,707
268,553,158
44,953,868
73,996,003
3,327,044
41,985,786
753,228,708
68,515,277
62,803,545
119,514,710
56,321
251,463,965
70,438,093
404,924,920
190,643,335

2022

Kshs
780,394,108
405,231,629
67,076,225
634,463,707
268,553,158
44,953,868
64,075,238
3,327,044
27,968,818
699,682,242
52,059,658
94,151,735
111,485,448
75,751
257,801,834
66,497,390
404,924,920
262,665,725

4,283,464,302

(1,304,647,805)

4,245,388,498
(1,255,548,644)

2,978,816,497

2,989,839,854

(1) Kshs. 405,231,629 relates to amount owing from the defunct KP&TC and has been
outstanding since year 2005. The Government of Kenya has since given assurance of

settlement of the amount, in effect through PCK.

(ii) Kshs.268,553,158 relates to amount owed to Postbank by PCK in respect to pension’s
cheques and warrants handled by PCK on an agency agreement. This amount has been
outstanding since year 2007 and the two organizations have made commitments to offset

these amounts in the next financial year.
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Acdount Receivable

J1s} December 2023 TOTAL 0 to 30 Days |31 to 60 Days [61 to 90 Days [91 and over Days

PCI Excess Deposits 780,394,108 0 0 0 780,394,108
KP&TC Excess Deposits 405,231,629 0 0 0 405,231,629
GoK Pension Cheques Receivable from PCK 108,970,126 4,088,200 4,542 637 30,092,300 70,246,989
Prepaid GoK Pension (Payroll) — PCK 634,463,707 5,358,709 5,849 352 6,209,845 617,045,801
GoK Pension Cheques Receivable — PCK 268,553,158 0 0 0 268,553,158
PCK Owverdrawn Claimable 44,953,868 0 0 0 44,953,868
Res}itution (PCK 73,996,003 0 3,494,440 3,796,903 66,704,660
Dirgctors Loans 3,327,044 0 0 0 3,327,044
Inug Jamii Commission Receivable 41,985,786 4937213 9,426,894 7,981,439 19,640,240
Stafff Loans 753,228,708 12,485,114 81,332,189 252,116,372 407,295,033
Stafff Debtors PDL 68,515,277 337,781 634,684 1,973,812 65,569,000
Intefest Receivable PDL 62,803,545 14,339 895 0 0 48,463,650
Renf R¢ceivables 119,514,710 10,643,129 14,523,340 14,841,965 79,506,276
Staff Imprest 56,321 56,321 0 0 0
Trade Debtors 190,643,335 70,689,580 31,203,916 85,369,439 3,380,400
TOTAL RECEIVABLES 3,556,637,325| 122,935,942| 151,007,452 402,382,076 2,880,311,856
Proyision for bad debts (1,304,647,805) (2,416,667) (49,416,667) (53,203,207) (1,199,611,265)
NE] RECEIVABLES 2,251,989,520] 120,519,275 101,590,785] 349,178,868 1,680,700,592]
31sq{ Décember 2022 TOTAL 0 to 30 Days (31 to 60 Days [61 to 90 Days |91 and over Days

PCH Excess Deposits 780,394,108 0 0 0 780,394,108
KP&TC Excess Deposits 405,231,629 0 0 0 405,231,629
GoHN Pension Cheques Receivable from PCK 67,076,225 4,088,200 4,542 637 30,092,300 28,353,088
Prefaid GoK Pension (Payroll) — PCK 634,463,707 5,358,709 5,849,352 6,209,845 617,045,801

GoK Pension Cheques Receivable — PCK 268,553,158 0 0 0 268,553,158
PCK Overdrawn Claimable 44,953 868 0 0 0 44,953 868
Resfitution (PCK 64,075,238 0 3,494,440 3,796,903 56,783,895
Dirdctors Loans 3,327,044 0 0 0 3,327,044
Inug Jamii Commission Receivable 27,968,818 4,937,213 9,426,894 7,981,439 5,623,272
Staff Lgans 699,682,242 430,593,896 81,332,189 12,485,114 175,271,043
Staff Dé¢btors PDL 52,059,658 337,781 634,684 1,973,812 49,113,381

Integest|Receivable PDL 94,151,735 14,339,895 0 0 79,811,841

Ren{ Receivables 111,485,448 10,643,129 14,523,340 14,841,965 71,477,013
Staff Injprest 75,751 75,751 0 0 0
Accfued interest on Treasury Bonds 257,801,834 205,433 205,433 205,433 257,185,535
Disgount on Treasury Bonds 66,497,390 328,392 328,392 328,392 65,512,214
Fixed deposits in ailing financial institutions 404,924,920 0 0 0 404,924,920
Trade Debtors 262,665,725 70,689,580 605,684 85,369,439 106,001,023
TOTAL RECEIVABLES 4,245,388,498| 541,597,979 120,943,045 163,284,643 3,419,562,833
Provision for bad debts (1,255,548,644) (2,416,667)| (49,416,667) (53,203,207) (1,150,512,104)
NET RECEIVABLES 2,989,839,854 539,181,312 71,526,378 110,081,435 2,269,050,729




Kenya Post Office Savings Bank
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 Lecember 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Prepayments and Other Assets 2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
Transitorial Accounts - Postbank (i) 1,060,154.846 1,085,031,790
Premium on Treasury Bonds (Prepaid) 215,748,566 218,674,231
Other Assets and Prepayments 798,080,494 679,380,864

2,073,983,906 1,983,086,885

(i) Kshs.1,060,154,846 under Transitorial accounts relates to balances held in accounts used by the
Bank to process internal payments. Therefore, the balance is not a realizable asset.
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“or the yeqr ended 31 December 2023

Votes td thk Financial Statements

27  (q) Land & Buildings

Cost/ Valuation Land Buildings Show Stand 2023 2022
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Lgng-term leaschold 760,000,000 1,090,000,000 0] 1,850,000,000 1,850,000,000
SHort-term leasehold 45,000,000 105,000,000| 6,500,000 156,500,000 156,500,000
805,000,000| 1,195,000,000| 6,500,000 2,006,500,000{| 2,006,500,000

in|2017 from Kshs 125 million to Kshs.50 million

Influded in short-term leaschold land and buildings is a property purchased in Mombasa. [t was revalued downwards

The intangible assets are in respect of Internet and mobile banking software

for)

2023 2022
28  Right of use Assets Kshs Kshs
A{ 1 January 265,128,829 =
Injpact on initial application of IFRS16 353,505,105
De¢preciation charge for the year (88,376,276) (88,376,276)
Net book value 176,752,553 265,128,829
Right of use assets relate to lecased premises that are presented within Right of Use Assets.
2023 2022
29 lrxtar gible Assets Kshs Kshs
Cost
Al 1 January 616,827,270 616,827,270
Aglditions - -
At 31 December 616,827,270 616,827,270
Amortization
Al 1 January 597,891,944 587,240,777
Amottization for the year 8,392,576 10,651,167
Al 31 December 606,284,520 597,891,944
Carrying Amount
Al 31 December 10,542,750 18,935,326
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30 Customers’ Savings and Deposit Accounts

Retail customers

Term deposits

Savings and Current accounts
Corporate customers:

Others

31 Accounts Payables and Accruals

Trade creditors

PCK Service s Rendered - GoK Pension
PCK Encashed Warrants Payable

PCK- Pension Warrants

GoK Pension Payroll

Accrued Expenses

Other creditors

2023 2022

Kshs Kshs
909,085,317 918,023,608
4,485,998,725 4,716,983,547
10,199,422,725 10,527,293,980
9,248,790,996 9,087,613,813
40,606,186 32,484,308
24,883,903,949 25,282,399,257

2023 2022

Kshs Kshs
50,721,669 71,082,477
(i) 534,376,156 534,376,156
(i1) 462,050,351 462,078,751
(ii1) 170,953,266 170,953,266
(iv) 1,015,919,183 1,016,756,250
449,908,799 293,899,780
468,786,751 266,948,824
3,152,716,175 2,816,095,504

(i) PCK Services rendered- GOK Pension/others refers to amount payable to Postal
Corporation of Kenya for services offered to our pensioners/regular customers for

normal banking services.

(i) PCK Encashed warrant payable refers to amount claimable by Postal Corporation

of Kenya on disbursement of pension to pensioners. The amount of

Kshs.462,078,751 which been outstanding since year 2007 will be settled once the

reconciliations are agreed on.

(i) PCK -GoK Warrant is the un-accounted amount to pensioners account held by
PCK. The amount of Kshs.170,953,266 which has been outstanding since year
2007 will be settled once we agree on reconciliations

(iv) GoK Pension Payroll is the un-applied amount to pensioners account held by PCK

32 GOK Pension Reserve Fund

Amount

2023
Kshs

54,470,982

2022
Kshs

73,411,134

These are pension funds from the Government for distribution.
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2023 2022
Lease Liabilities Kshs Kshs
At 1 January 265,352,453 357,568,786
Interest expense in the year 5,369,674 7,540,290
Lease Liability debits (Rent paid) in the year (90,886,873) (99,756,623)

179,835,254 265,352,453

Comprised of:
Current 88,376,276 88,376,276
Non-current 91,458,978 176,752,552
Net book value - 31 December 179,835,254 265,128,828
Deferred Revenue 2023 2022

Kshs Kshs
Western Union Product 2,013,211 2,013,211
Bidii Product 3,706,728 3,706,728
Visa EMV Project 229,458 229,458
Smata, Mchama & Agency Expansion Projects 2,344,437 6,003,562

8,293,834 11,952,959
During the year the Bank spent Kshs 3,659,125 grant on Mchama/smata expansion
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2023 2022

Kshs Kshs
Bank and cash balances (note 19 ) 527,290,619 444 983,904
Deposits in banks and Financial Institutions (note 20) 90,980,520 740,256,552
Treasury Bills and Bonds (note 21 -a) 6,199,845,764 6,878,317,214

6,818,116,903 8,063,557,670
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2023 2022
Kshs Kshs
1) Directors Remuneration
Directors Honoraria 929973 759,452
Directors Allowances 10,015,818 5,780,590
10,945,791 6,540,042

(11) Key management remuneration
Salaries and wages 9,350,490 10,441,405

(ii1) Loans to staff

Welfare loans 753,228,708 699.682,242
Personal development Loan 68,515,277 52,059,658
821,743,985 751,741,900

Interest income on staff loans was Kshs 28,758,398 (2022-27,417,209). The effective
interest rate for welfare loans is 5% while for personal development loan is 10%. Staff
mortgages and car loans are secured by charging the related property to the Bank.

(1v) Loans to Directors

balance of Kshs 3,327,044 relates to loans advanced to former directors that have fully
been provided for write-off
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J

LIQUIDITY KISK

The table below analyses assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as at 31 December 2023 to the contractual maturity date,

Matured in less |1 months less than

3 months less than

6 months less than

1 year less than 3

3 years less than §

Totals

A Assets Marored than o month |3 mionths |6 months Tyear years vears over 5 years

Bank and Cash Balances 507,940,886 507,940,886
Investment in T Bonds 0 0 0 20,000,000 35,000,000 678,882,500 5.465.973.264 6,199,855,764
Funds on call and short notice 91,339,424 91,339,424
Investment Property 32,390,225 32,390,225
Other Investment 4,182,067 4,182,067
Other Assets 458,699418 707,528,153 632,356,163 805,772,130 445319078 645,049,609 850,659,374 764,975,569 5,310,359,493
Property and Equipment 0 0 11,406,542 0 29,502,315 580,564,985 321,862,445 1,062,169,944 2,005,506,232
Intangible Assets 19,931,304 19,931,304
Total Assets 966,640,304 798,867,577 647,944,772 805,772,130 494,821,394 1,260,614,594 1,871,335,623 7,325,509,002 14,171,505,395
Other Liabilities 435354219 588,778.402 524,271,941 503,487,465 462,703,573 518,984,153 242,081,829 98,878,089 3,374,539,671

Customers’ Savings and Deposit

accounts 821,401,742 2,853,669,952 2,623,156,120 2,413,117,136 2,829,398,228 2,441,590,743 3,331,111,333 7,568,538.495 24,881,983,749

GOK. Pension Reserve Fund Account 54,470,982 54,470,982

Deferred Revenue 3,378,168 2,786,564 2,129,102 8,293,834

Revaluation Reserves 777,509,414 2,388,250,796 3,165,760,210

Changes in fair value of financial

Instruments at FVOCI (580,211,936) (580,211,936)
Revenue Reserves (681,709.290) (16,051.621,824)| (16,733,331,114)
Total Liabilities and Reserves 1,311,226,943 3,442,448,355 1,885,506,834 2,916,604,601 3,295,479,969 2,963,361,460 4,352.831,678 (5,995,954,444) 14,171,505,396
A- B Liquidity GAP (344,586,639)] (2,643,580,778)|  (1,237,562,062)|  (2,110,832,471)| (2.800,658,576)] (1 ,702,746,866)|  (2,481,496,055)| 13,321,463.445

Customers’ Savings and deposits accounts relate to Savings and fixed account balances. Although classified under this band, previous experience has shown these to be stable and of long term in nature
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38 CONSOLIDATION

Consolidated Accounts are not prepared as the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiary, Postbank
Credit Limited, is under liquidation

39 COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to reporting under
IFRS

40 EMPLOYEES
The average number of employees during the year was 526 (2022-572).

41 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with significant impact on
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

42 NETWORK OF POSTBANK BRANCHES
The total number of branches during the year was 97.
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Appendix I:
PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is a summary of issues raised by the external auditor and management comments that were provided to

_the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated-time—

frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.
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Referen | Issue Observations from Auditor Management comments Focal Status Timeframe
ce No. Point
on the person to
external resolve
audit the issue
Report
1 Property and Equipment
F a) The bank holds an allotment
1.1 Lack of i The statement of financial position reflects a letter and receipts relating Ag. On- NA
Title | balance of Kshs.2,132,157,196 in respect to to all payments made in Company going
Deed and | property, plant and equipment. However, the relation to the property. Secretary
Encroach | following unsatisfactory issues were noted: b) Generation of Title over the
ment of :
Land | As disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements, property is at an advanc_ed
the property and equipment balance of stage. Currently hjed await
Kshs.2,132,157,196 includes an amount of approval of the Register
Kshs.805,000,000 for land out of which Index Map (RIM) by the
| Kshs.5,000,000 related to a parcel of land located Director of Surveys.
within Nairobi. However, the land had remained Thereafter, the bank will
unfenced and had since been encroached by proceed to lodge the Lease
informal settlers. Although Management explained for registration at the
the measures, they had put in place to secure the Registrar of Lands in
land and obtain a title deed, as at the time of audit, Nairobi.
full and actual possession of the land had not been c) The bank is yet to obtain

obtained.

budget approval to enable it
to put up a perimeter wall
around the property.

Currently the Bank has leased

it out to Safaricom who have
mounted their commination
mast. (The Bank earns Kshs
450,000 per year as rental
income). On site there is a
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temporary structure of which

the Bank 1s aware ot tnis

minimizes the risk of
encroachment

1.2 Unknown | Over the years, the Bank has been embroiled in a The land in dispute involves Ag. | On- NA
Ownershi | dispute for a parcel of land in Nairobi, Milimani Postbank and Simiyu Wasike. It is | Company going
p Status | Area. The land was registered in the name of the in Upper Hill, as per revaluation Secretary
of Land Bank and valued at Kshs.550,000,000 but had its done in December 2017 it was
in title deed encumbered. Review of information valued at Kshs 550 million but
Dispute provided, indicated that the matter between the carried at book value of Kshs

Bank and a claimant has been in Court since 1995. | 27,390,225. The Bank lost the

The outcome of the case had not been determined matter at the High Court and filed

at the time of the audit. an Appeal of the unfavorable High
Court decision on the ownership of
the property at the Court of
Appeal. The appeal was slated and
heard on 25t June,2024, where
the bank highlighted its
submissions. The court will deliver
its judgement on 6t December
2024
The Board guided management to

1.3 Motor Included in the reported property and equipment dispose the vehicle as scrap to the | Ag. Resolved | NA
Vehicle balance of Kshs.2,132,157,196 is Kshs.8,778,669 National Youth Service in line with | Manager
Without relating to motor vehicles. However, and as The Public Procurement and Asset | Procureme
a reported in the previous year, the logbook for one Disposal Act (transfer to another nt
Logbook motor vehicle valued at Kshs.400,000 had not been | public entity).

issued to the Bank by the National Transport and
Safety Authority (NTSA) since November 1997. This
was despite the Bank having paid the requisite
duty to register the vehicle in its own name.

In the circumstances, the ownership of the two
parcels of land and the motor vehicle could not be
| confirmed.

We wrote to PPRA for guidance on
how to dispose the vehicle without
the logbook and we suggested to
them that we were intending to
transfer it to NYS as scrap to be
used for training and they guided
that it was in order. We are in the
process of constituting a disposal
committee to carry out the
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disposal process for this vehicle.
The disposal process was
completed, and the motor vehicle
was disposed to NYS to be used for
training only.

Currently we are using Microsoft

that were opened for minors, for
example the Junior accounts. Once
they attain eighteen years, they
automatically graduate to step
accounts or any other account of

1.4 Incomple | The fixed asset register maintained by the Bank Dynamic GP as our accounting Ag Head of | Ongoing | 2024
te Asset and provided for audit review lacked the minimum software. We conducted Microsoft Finance -
Register general and accounting information required by for assistance and Microsoft

The National Treasury Guidelines on Asset and indicated that most of their

Liability Management in the public sector, 2020. partners do not have skills and

The asset description, serial number, tag number, expertise for Microsoft Dynamic GP

model, location, acquisition cost, depreciation rate, | because they no longer support

net book value, asset condition among other details | nor produce any patches for this

were not indicated in the asset register. version and recommended an
upgrade for a newer version, the

In the circumstances, the ownership of the two cost of the proposed upgrade of MS

parcels of land and the motor vehicle could not be GP is way beyond the available

confirmed. budget now.
We are currently procuring support
services for Microsoft Dynamics
Great Plains our accounting
software. When they come in one of
their key deliverables will be
updating the fixed assets register

2 Custome | The statement of financial position reflects The GL figure and Core banking Ag Head of | Resolved
r's customers’ savings and deposit accounts totaling system tie as at close of FY 2022, Finance
Savings Kshs.24,152,756,542. However, the component
and amounts disclosed in Note 31 to the financial Account type/classification keeps
Deposit statements are at variance with the customer on changing from time to time e.g.

Accounts | listing schedule provided as detailed below. We have a category of accounts
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their preference. In other occasions

same cliente antad tao onax
ptee—to-epen

multiple accounts for instance a

Although management explained that the difference
arose from accounts for minors which change to
step accounts or any other accounts of their
preference when they attain maturity age while
some clients opted to open multiple accounts, no
harmonization has been made between the core
banking system and the financial management
system.

Further, included under others amount of

| Kshs.38,014,850 are independent agent accounts
of Kshs.200,919, agent control of Kshs.21,769,581
and ATM retracted cash of Kshs.15,645,476 whose
supporting schedules were not provided for audit
revie. In addition, no explanation was provided on
why the retracted cash was not immediately rolled
back to the respective customer accounts.

It was also noted that there were overdrawn
customer accounts to the tune of Kshs.32,035,507
which is against the customer savings rules.
Further, approvals from the respective customers
were not provided for audit review.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and
completeness of customers’ savings and deposit

client can have a SAYE and Waridi

agent and agent
control accounts are float funds for
our agents. The funds take care of
daily transactions at the agency
level. All transactions at the agents
pass through the control account.
ATM Retracted cash account is the
account used to have a complete
double entry for funds that was not
dispensed. The branch investigates
that the money was not dispensed
they later Debit: Retracted cash
Acc and Credit: customers
account. The retracted accountis a
control account and for our own
record  keeping that shows
customers account was credited.
The schedules are available in the
system.

[t Amount as | Amount as per

TErte Supporting | Vanance

Stalements Account

Kshs, Kshs, Kshs. ’
Relzil Cushomers 907 847 064 105827 | 2638198 Independent
Tem Deposts 4850540 247 | 43524675 | 1845403
Saings and Cumeni Aocounts | 10,616 380,483 | 10,587 676,851 | [28.103.532)
Corporate Customers TTHOI400T | TH2140080 | f223782
Otnars 38,014,850 - | {38,014 350)
Total M52 756,541 | M58.756.5¢1

We have and agreement with the
Government to pay pensioners
payroll in advance before receipt of
funds from GOK /Treasury hence
debiting the GOK control account.

These are not customers account
being allowed to overdraw.
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| accounts balance of Kshs.24,152,756,542 could

not be confirmed.

Cash and | The statement of financial position reflects a cash The difference of Kshs.1,535,173 Ag Head of | Ongoing | 2024
Cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.352,118,680 between the balance in FS and the | Finance
Equivale | which as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial balance shown in the reconciliation
nts statements, includes amounts of Kshs.299,087,064 | statement is due to ATM timing

and Kshs.53,031,615 in respect of cash in hand difference where the cut off time is

and cash at bank, respectively. However, the 4.00p.m. for banking and ATM

reported cash in hand balance of Kshs.299,087,064 | closes at midnight.

differed with the balance of Kshs.300,622,237

reflected in the Board of survey report with a The balances in the closed

| variance of Kshs.1,535,173 which was not branches have been transferred to

reconciled. Further, included in the cash at bank the appropriate accounts in FY

balances of Kshs.53,031,615 were twenty-five (25) 2023

overdrawn accounts (cash book overdrafts) totaling

to Kshs.143,502,392 which were offset against The overdrawn cashbooks have

other bank balance contrary to International been reinstated as unpaid cheques

Accounting Standards Paragraphl.32 which which has not been presented to

requires that assets and liabilities, and income and | the bank and has already become

| expenses, may not be offset unless required or stale (expired).
permitted by International Financial Reporting
Standards These issues arise due to
unpresented cheques.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and

completeness of the cash and cash equivalents

balance of Kshs.352,118,680 could not be

confirmed.
Account Payables and Accruals

The statement of financial position reflects a Table 1 below summarizes Ag Head of | Resolved

Accounts Payables and Accruals Finance

} balance of Kshs.3,041,707,106 in respect to

accounts payables and accruals which, as disclosed

| in Note 32 to the financial statements, includes

Kshs.114,769,656, Kshs.1,018,632,353 and
Kshs.407,050,681 relating to trade creditors, GoK

aging analysis.
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.
13

I | Pension Payroll and other creditors, respectively. Other creditors were adjusted
However, review oI the Dalances and Dalances TATOUZIT end 0l audIt ad]uUSTIeInts
reported in the financial statements revealed as per the JE mumbers showmn i
variances as detailed below. Table 2 below.

Amount per Amount per | variance
FS schedule
item

kshs kshs kshs

Trade 114,681,635 | 114,679,65 | -88,021

creditor 6

S

GoK 1,020,007,88 | 1,018,632,3 | 1,375,533
Pension | 6 53

payroll

Other 683,361,107 | 407,050,.68 | 276,310,42
creditor 1
S

Further, an ageing analysis of payables was not
provided to support the balances.

In the circumstances the accuracy of the account
payables and accruals balance of
Kshs.3,041,707,106 as at 31 December, 202 could
not be confirmed.

i) Amount owing from Postal

5 Long As reported in the previous report, the statement of Corporation of Kenya (PCK) - Ag Head of | On- Subject to
Outstand | financial position reflects net account receivables Kshs. 268,553,156 - Finance going availability of
ing i balance of Kshs.2,589,012,121 which, as disclosed Discussions and Reconciliations PCK team and
Receivabl | in Note 26 to the financial statements includes towards settlement have been Funds
es gross account receivables of Kshs.3,392,635,846. ongoing between Postbank and ! availability at

PCK. The technical teams of the
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The balance includes Kshs.405,231,629 and
Kshs.268,553,158 relating to GoK-Kenya Post and
Telecommunication Corporation and GoK Pension
cheques Receivables- Postal Corporation of Kenya,
respectively which had been outstanding for more
than fourteen (14) years. Although management
cited commitment from the concerned parties
including The National Treasury to settle the debts,
as at the time of audit, the accounts were still
outstanding.

In addition although a provision of
Kshs.803,623,725 had been made against bad and
doubtful debts, the adequacy of the provision could
not be confirmed.

In the circumstances, the full recoverability of the
net accounts receivables.

two organizations reached an
agreement and a second sign-off
was done on 5th August 2021.
Reconciliations are ongoing to
clear up the outstanding issues.

ii) Amount owing from KP&TC -
Kshs. 405,231,629 - A Cabinet
decision on Strategy to reform
KPOSB (Ref ZZ.27/71/01-Dated
2nd November 2011 was
approved and among the issues
approved decision was that the
Government settles the debt
owned by the defunct KP& TC
(Kshs 405.2 million) to KPOSB.
The Bank has been following up
with The National Treasury to
facilitate recovery.

iii) Going forward the Bank will
implement IFRS 9 in calculating
provisions for accounts
receivables. (This has not been
implemented due to CAPEX
budget constraint)

The National
Treasury

Intangibl
e Assets

The statement of financial position reflects a
balance of Kshs.29,586,493 in respect to intangible
assets as at 31 December,2021 which includes
additional assets acquired during the year
amounting to Kshs13,270,096. Audit review of the
software register revealed the following:

i) The date of acquisition of the software
amounting to Kshs.3,881,552 was 28
January 2020 and hence may not

The additional software amounting
to Kshs.3,881,552 was bought in
FY 2020 and commissioned in
2021 due to the long
implementation period expected of
this software.

Currently we are using Microsoft
Dynamic GP as our accounting
software. We conducted Microsoft
for assistance and Microsoft

Ag Head of
Finance

Resolved
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qualify as additions during the financial

indicated that most of their

year ended 31 December 2021

partners do not have sKIiIs and

11) The useful life for the assets was not
indicated to ascertain the correctness of
the amortization charge and netbook
value.

iii) The payment vouchers for the two

] acquisitions of software worth

i Kshs.13,270,105 were not provided

{ iv) Review of the records indicates that
most of the software is fully amortized
and may be past the useful life, or could
be obsolete and not take into
consideration the current circumstances
e.g. safeguards against fraud.

In the circumstances, the accuracy of the intangible
i assets balance of Kshhs29,586,493 as at 31

| December 2021 could not confirmed.
1

expertise for Microsoit Dynamic GFP
because they no longer support nor
produce any patches for this
version and recommended an
upgrade for a newer version, the
cost of the proposed upgrade of MS
GP is way beyond the available
budget now.

We are currently procuring support
services for Microsoft Dynamics
Great Plains our accounting
software. When they come in one of
their key deliverables will be
updating the fixed assets register

All payment vouchers are available
and have been provided to the
auditors during the 2022 audit
exercise and signed for by the
Auditors in the delivery notebook.

The Capex budget for the Bank
has not been approved for the
last three years, posing a
challenge in updating the
software

Unsuppo
rted Prior
Year
Adjustme
nts

The statement of changes in equity reflects the
prior- year adjustments balance of
Kshs.88,031,919 relating to correction of errors
affecting various prior year balances.

Key prior year adjustments relate
to

The major contribution of the
adjustment was pension
commission Kshs.40,296,900, inua

Ag Head of
Finance

Resolved
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Further, the statement of cashflows reflects a prior
year adjustment balance of Kshs.91,834,389 while
the property and equipment schedule reflects a
prior year adjustment balance of Kshs.3,802,470.
However, the prior year adjustments were not
restated retrospectively in the comparative year
contrary to the requirements of Paragraph 42(a) of
the International Accounting Standard No. 8 —
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, which states that, an entity
shall correct material prior period errors
retrospectively in the first set of financial
statements authorized for issue after their
discovery, by restating the comparative amounts for
the prior period(s) presented in which the error
occurred. Further, the journal vouchers supporting
the prior year adjustments were not provided for
audit.

| In the circumstances, the accuracy and validity of
j the prior year adjustment could not be confirmed.

Jamii commission
Kshs.28,194,807, premier credit
appraisal fee and disbursement fee
Kshs. 10,989,912 omitted
previously.

All Prior year adjustment schedule
was provided to the audit team for
sample selection of Journal for
verification.

As per International Accounting
Standard 8-Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors-

Limitations on retrospective
restatement paragraph 44, which
states

When it is impracticable to
determine the period-specific effects
of an error on comparative
information for one or more prior
periods presented, the entity shall
restate the opening balances of
assets, liabilities, and equity for the
earliest period for which
retrospective restatement is
practicable (which may be the
current period). Reason for posting
these prior year adjustments in the
current year.

i

Emphasis of Matter
|

Material
Uncertai

| As previously reported, the bank reported a loss of
Kshs.311,248,432 (2020) Kshs.1,101,020,895

The Bank operates with the
intention of being in business in

| Ongoing

Continuous
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nty in

increasing the accumulated loss from

the next 12 months and in the

Dnlnr' n Lhal l: ")A’7 '7/1 1 Qﬂn_&e_ai- o Th R w h o000 & £ Ial Enads Tl

T TRwyltay. L T T LOUT ~ X n_n_.\_,\_,uxu\.x, FATFAvapawy TOTCOCCaOTCTAa LI O TIIC
to Going +Kshs.1 ‘ 365 358 373-as-at-31 December; 202+ management runs-the day-to-day
Concern Further, the bank’s current liabilities balance of activities by ensuring that assets

Kshs.27,619,772,408 exceeded the current assets
balance of Kshs.12,967,431,149 resulting to a
negative working capital of Kshs.14,652,341,259
(2020: Kshs.14,118,525,552). The Bank was,
therefore, unable to meet its financial obligations
when due. As disclosed at Note 2(e)(i) to the
financial statements, the Bank was technically
insolvent and its continued operations as a going
concern will depend on the continued support from
the government and creditors.

My Opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

are realized, and liabilities honored
in the normal course of business.

However, the Bank’s future
performance is dependent on
restructuring and government
support in defraying the incurred
losses from the year 2012 to 2021
amounting to
(Kshs.15,365,358,373) in
accordance with KPOSB Act cap
493B section 13 (1).

In addition to above

Several turn- around strategies
aimed at returning the bank to
profitability are in the various
stages of implementation.

KPMG Business review is done and
report with recommendations
finalized and submitted to The
National Treasury for approval
/adoption for turnaround of
Postbank. The review will address
the following.

optimization of the ICT
infrastructure

human capital
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current product offerings with a
view of recommending a
sustainable business model.

2. Human Resources instruments
have been done and submitted to
The National Treasury for approval
/adoption to ensure the Bank is
strategically structured.

3. Several turns around strategies
aimed at returning the bank to
profitability are in the various
stages of implementation, key

! among them,

a) Reduction of interest rates paid
to Customer Savings and Deposits
this led to a drop in Interest
expense by 19%.

b) Tariff review on fees and
commissions charges by the bank
in FY 2019 which led to 20%
increase in fees and commission
from Kshs 361 million in FY 2018
to Kshs 435 million in FY 2019.

¢) Various cost cutting measures
are being implemented

d) Branch rationalization and
merger of loss-making branches.

¢) Migration of branches into
nearby Postal Corporation of Kenya
premises whose rental cost are




Appendix I:

PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

cheaper (this will cut down on
rental costs)

f) Product rationalization and
greater focus on clients and
products as well as streamlining
existing products to meet
customers’ requirements/demand.

g) Enhanced Partnership with
Government institutions to offer
financial services

h) Working on staff rationalization
which will lead to reduction of staff
cost

i) Enhance alternate banking
channels to target more customers
in rural Kenya

As per Kenya Post Office Savings
Bank Act Cap 493B, Section 13(A)
Surplus and deficits- Without
prejudice to paragraph (f) of
section 4, if in any year the
revenue of the Bank is insufficient
to defray the interest due to
depositors and all expenses under
this Act, such deficiency shall be
charged upon and paid out of the
Consolidated Fund.

The bank has made several

-apphcationsfor-losses-ineurred to

the Naticnal Treasury—H

¥y 1OF

Government support /in defraying
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the incurred losses from the year
2012 to 2018.

Defrayment of losses to close the
gaping hole in the balance sheet is
one of the sure ways of returning
the Bank to profitability.

Over the years banks performance
has been improving

Restructuring process are bearing
fruit, the loss for the Bank has
declined from Kshs 1.589 billion in
FY 2018 to Kshs 676 million in FY
2022.

Other Matters

9 Budgetar | The statement of comparison of budget and actual The Bank missed it income targets | Ag Head of | Ongoing
y Control | amounts reflects final receipts budget and actual for the year because of Finance
and receipts on a comparable basis of
Performa | Kshs.1,675,421,263 and Kshs.1,720,615,859 The year 2021 was characterized
nce respectively, resulting to an under-funding of by low interest rates due to

Kshs45,194,596 or 3% of the budget. Government interventions to boost
the economy during the COVID -19
Similarly, the Bank expended Kshs.2,004,180,234 pandemic. This led to yields on
against an approved budget of Kshs.2,300,592,593 | Treasury Bonds dropping, leading
resulting to an under-expenditure of to purchase of investments with
Kshs.296,412,359 or 13% of the budget. low yields in the Primary Auction
Markets. This negatively impacted
The under-funding and under-performance affected | on the Bank’s target investment
| the planned activities and may have impacted return of 13%. (Average yield for
| negatively on service delivery to the public the year was 10.52%)
Rental income for the period was
Kshs 66 million, 24% lower than
L the target of Kshs 90 million due to
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low occupancy level. The decline is
attributed to COVID-19 pandemic
which has resulted in reduced
demand for office spaces as
businesses restructure their
operations leading to the scaling
down by some firms while others
adopt working from home
strategies.

On Expenses

The Bank implemented cost-
cutting measures that contributed
to savings in expenses recorded in
FY 2021.

It through these cost cutting
measures that helped the bank
improve its performance from a
loss of Kshs 1.1 billion in FY 2020
to a loss of Kshs.311 million in FY
2021.

The Bank does not get funding
from the Government. Hence
the need to save costs without
negatively impacting the
operations of the Bank.
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The statement of financial position reflects
10 Loss of prepayments and other assets balance of The Bank is following up reported Ag Head of | Ongoing
cash Kshs.2,479,011,596 which, as disclosed under Note | fraud cases with insurance and Finance
27 to the financial statements, includes an amount | other relevant organizations for
| of Kshs.841,995,534 in respect of other assets and recovery as per attached sample
| prepayments. The supporting schedule provided communication between the bank
for audit reflected receivables totaling to and various insurance companies.
| Kshs.94,862,173 (2020: Kshs.76,378,627) being
money lost through fraud. As previously Some cases are still in Court, we
reported, evidence of the effort by Management to are waiting for the ruling (see
recover the money was not provided for audit. attached sample of ongoing court
cases)
Further, cash shortages from working cashiers
totaling Kshs.40,723,667 had not been recovered Staff who have been involved in
by the end of the year. This is despite the fraud are dismissed and the
provisions of the Bank’s Human Resource Policy recovery process of stolen funds
that such cash shortages be made good within commences immediately. (See
forty-eight (48) hours by the concerned staff. In the | attached sample of dismissal from
circumstances, the recoverability of the amounts service letters attached)
could not be confirmed.
Currently all shortages are being
recovered promptly as per policy
Table 1: Summary of Accounts Payables and Accruals aging analysis.
’ 91 and over
_ Accounts Payables and Accruals 2021 it A SIrgi0g Pays Ol for f0:bnys Days
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Trade creditors 114,769,656 64,625,560.37 5,088,021.03 4,451,200.58 40,604,874
PCK Service s Rendered - GoK
| Pension 534,376,156 534,376,156
i PCK Encashed Warrants Payable 462,078,751 462,078,751
| PCK- Pension Warrants 170,953,266 170,953,266
| GoK Pension Payroll 1,018,632,353 1,018,632,353
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Accrued Expenses 333,846,242 3,878,456 2,511,893.00 30,609,651.00 296,846,242
Other creditors 407,050,681 85,752,169 321,298,512
3,041,707,106 154,256,186 7,599,914 35,060,852 2,844,790,154

Table 2: Other Payables audit adjustments

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Amount | JE No

Rent in Advance

3,696,000 | JE-1130

Interest Payable

45,694,213 | JE-1104

Atm Settlement

(27,973,671) | JE-1132

Atm Settlement

(77,881,797) | JE-113

1

Atm Settlement

15,332 | JE-113

1

PAYE (35,372,911) | JE-1150
EMV (74,108,190) | JE-502
EMV (65,399,290) | JE-503
EMV (58,862,330) | JE-503
EMV (16,069,020) | JE-503
EMV (14,000) | JE-503
interest (9,419,962 | JE-105
tax 5 (16,963,297) | JE-1129
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